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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Global International
Credit Group Limited (the “Company” together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), | am delighted to present the annual report of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020").

2020 was a year like no other — we see it as one of the most extraordinary
and challenging years in living memory. The outbreak of coronavirus
("COVID-19") has brought upon unprecedented challenges to the world.
The implementation of various social-distancing and lockdown measures
has caused social and economic disruptions of a devastating scale which
dealt a heavy blow to the global and local economies. Amid the global
pandemic, the gross domestic product of Hong Kong unescapably
contracted by 6.1% for 2020.

In view of the increasing uncertainties, from the beginning of 2020,
the Group strived to streamline its loan portfolio mix and to reduce its
exposure on high-risk loans. The economic fallout of COVID-19 subdued
investor sentiment on property and business investment leading to lower
demand for financing. Amid such a difficult operating environment, the
Group's gross loans receivable declined by 21.4% or HK$203.4 million from
HK$948.7 million as at 31 December 2019 to HK$745.3 million as at 31
December 2020, and the Group recorded a decline in revenue of HK$18.4
million or 15.1% to HK$103.3 million in FY2020 as compared to HK$121.7
million in the prior year.

Though the residential property market in Hong Kong appeared shaky
in early 2020 given all the uncertainties around, supportive borrowing
costs and fundamental demand-supply imbalance continue to support
the residential property market and residential prices ended the year at
somewhat the same level from a year earlier. The overall quality of the
Group’s mortgage loan portfolio remained benign. With our continued
efforts in reducing high risk loans and the overall decrease in the Group's
gross loan receivables, the Group recorded a decrease in expected credit
losses of HK$1.5 million for FY2020.

As the slowdown of business activities during such unprecedented
moment was expected and prepared by the Group, and stringent cost
control measures were implemented by the Group during the year,
notwithstanding the decline in revenue, the Group managed to uphold
the profit and total comprehensive income for FY2020 at HK$64.2 million,
representing an increase of HK$1.7 million or 2.7% as compared to HK$62.5
million in the prior year.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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Looking forward, with the anticipation of effective vaccines being available
and the impact of COVID-19 eventually subsiding, there is a general
expectation of a slow recovery of the economy in 2021. The Group will
continue to adopt prudent and flexible business strategies and be well
positioned to expand our business.

I would like to express my heartfelt appreciation to all the senior
management and staff of the Group for their commitment and
contributions in upholding our service quality. | remain deeply grateful to
my fellow Board members for their invaluable advice and contributions
to the Group's direction of development and corporate governance. | also
wish to offer sincere thanks to our customers, shareholders and business
partners for their continuing loyalty and trust. We will continue with
our endeavor to pursue growth of our business and create value for our
shareholders.

To reward and thank our shareholders for their support, the Board

recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK6.4 cents per share and
a special dividend of HK$3.2 cents per share.

Wang Yao
Chairman of the Board

30 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the money lending business focusing
primarily on providing short-term and long-term property mortgage loans
in Hong Kong under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

During FY2020, the outbreak of coronavirus (“COVID-19") delivered a
considerable hit to the global and local economies, as the implementation
of different levels of lockdown restrictions across the world has led various
economic activities to a near standstill. The economy of Hong Kong was
severely affected and the Gross Domestic Product contracted by 6.1%
in 2020 and unemployment rate hit 6.6% in December 2020. Under
such a challenging operating environment, the Group conducted its
loan business with stringent credit control to minimise associated credit
risks. With the dampening loan demand amid the subdued economic
conditions, the amount of new loan transactions granted by the Group
during FY2020 was further affected. The Group’s gross loans receivable
thus decreased by HK$203.4 million or 21.4% from HK$948.7 million as
at 31 December 2019 to HK$745.3 million as at 31 December 2020, and
the Group's interest income decreased by HK$18.4 million or 15.1% from
HK$121.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 ("FY2019") to
HK$103.3 million for FY2020.
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During the market downturn, while office and retail property prices in
Hong Kong showed sharp corrections, according to the Ratings and
Valuation Department of the Hong Kong Government, the residential
property price index in Hong Kong remained unchanged in 2020 from
a year earlier. As the Group’s mortgage loans were primarily secured by
residential properties, and the Group has increased its effort in recovering
high risk loans during the year, and as such the overall loan-to-value ratio
of the Group's loan portfolio remained at a stable level.

In response to the sluggish business environment, the Group has
strengthened its capital management and imposed stringent cost control
measures during FY2020. Thus, the Group managed to achieve a growth
in profit and other comprehensive income by HK$1.7 million or 2.7% to
HK$64.2 million for FY2020 as compared to HK$62.5 million for FY2019.

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The outbreak of COVID-19 caused a heavy blow to the global and local
economies, with the contraction of economic activities, demand for
money lending services in Hong Kong has been curbed during the
year. Meanwhile, the Group’s cost of funds has been reduced as the US
Federal Reserve cut the federal funds rate to near zero amidst the global
coronavirus pandemic.

As the economy contracted and unemployment rate in Hong Kong
increased during the year, there is an increasing threat of a rise of loan
defaults and delinquent payments. The Group has taken measures to
actively review the repayment record of the customers and conduct
comprehensive assessments on the related collaterals to manage the
credit risk. Prompt legal action for loan recovery has been taken on any
identified default of loans to minimise possible credit losses.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For FY2020, the Group's interest income from its money lending business
was HK$103.3 million, representing a decrease of HK$18.4 million or 15.1%
from interest income of HK$121.7 million for FY2019. The decrease was
primarily due to the decrease in average month-end balance of mortgage
loans receivable during the year. The average month-end balance of
aggregate mortgage loans receivable decreased by HK$117.2 million or
12.2% from HK$958.6 million for FY2019 to HK$841.4 million for FY2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Other income

Other income increased by HK$1,251,000 from HK$80,000 in FY2019 to
HK$1,331,000 in FY2020. Other income in FY2020 mainly represented one-
off wage subsidies provided by the Hong Kong Government under the
Employment Support Scheme.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses incurred by the Group mainly comprised
employee benefit expenses, advertising and marketing expenses, legal
and professional fees, auditor's remuneration, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, depreciation of right-of-use assets and other
administrative expenses. These expenses, which constitute 23.7% and
25.2% of the total revenue for FY2020 and FY2019, respectively, decreased
from HK$30.6 million in FY2019 to HK$24.4 million in FY2020, representing
a decrease of HK$6.2 million or 20.3%.

Employee benefit expenses decreased by HK$0.7 million or 5.8% from
HK$12.0 million in FY2019 to HK$11.3 million in FY2020.

Advertising and marketing expenses decreased by HK$3.6 million or 42.9%
from HK$8.4 million in FY2019 to HK$4.8 million in FY2020. The decrease
in advertising and marketing expenses in FY2020 was mainly due to less
resources being devoted to television advertising.

Excluding employee benefit expenses and advertising and marketing
expenses mentioned above, administrative expenses decreased by HK$1.9
million or 18.6% from HK$10.2 million in FY2019 to HK$8.3 million in
FY2020. These expenses were comprised of mainly legal and professional
fees of HK$1.0 million (FY2019: HK$1.8 million); auditor's remuneration of
HKS$1.1 million (FY2019: HKS1.6 million); depreciation of property, plant
and equipment of HK$0.4 million (FY2019: HK$0.6 million); depreciation
of right-of-use assets of HK$4.0 million (FY2019: HK$2.7 million); and other
administrative expenses of HK$1.7 million (FY2019: HKS2.3 million). In
addition, there was no operating lease of land and buildings in FY2020
(FY2019: HKS1.4 million).
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Reversal of impairment losses/(impairment losses) - net
The Group recognised a reversal of provision for impairment losses on
loans receivable and interest receivables of HK$1.5 million in FY2020,
while a charge for provision of impairment losses of HK$1.4 million was
recognised in FY2019. The reversal of provision for impairment losses
made in FY2020 was mainly attributable to the decrease in loans receivable
with higher loan-to-value ratios.

Finance costs

Finance costs decreased by HK$9.9 million or 66.0% from HK$15.0 million
in FY2019 to HKS$5.1 million in FY2020 due to a decrease in average
borrowings and interest rates during the year.

Net interest margin

Net interest margin during the year refers to the interest income in respect
of the Group's mortgage loans and personal loans less finance costs
(excluding interest expenses on lease liabilities) divided by the average of
month-end gross loans receivable balances of the corresponding loans
during the year.

Net interest margin increased from 11.2% for FY2019 to 11.7% for FY2020.

Income tax expenses
The Group's effective tax rate decreased slightly from 16.3% for FY2019 to
16.2% for FY2020.

Profit and total comprehensive income

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's profit and total comprehensive
income for FY2020 was HK$64.2 million, representing an increase of HK$1.7
million or 2.7% from profit and total comprehensive income of HK$62.5
million for FY2019.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

OUTLOOK

With the pandemic situation persisting and an increasing unemployment
rate, it is anticipated that the economic situation of Hong Kong will remain
challenging in the first half of 2021. The operating environment of the
Group, in the aspects of property prices, loan demand and loan default risk,
would therefore remain under pressure.

The recovery of the economy will largely depend on the development
of the pandemic situation. With a hope that the availability of vaccines
will help control the pandemic, there is a general expectation of a slow
recovery of the economy in 2021, and that the demand for lending services
will steadily recover in the second half of the year.

Looking ahead, the Group will remain cautious and sensibly uphold
its risk management policies and credit review process to control the
quality of the Group’s loan portfolio. The Group will focus its efforts on
recovering loans with high loan-to-value ratios and will closely monitor
the development of the property market to implement necessary timely
measures. The Group will also strengthen its capital management and
implement stringent cost control measures to uphold its profitability
during the downturn of economy.

Although the Group does not have any detailed plans for material
investments, capital assets or launching new products in a large scale
currently, it will continue to improve its existing products and services to
enhance customer experience.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

During FY2020, the Group's operational and capital requirements were
financed principally through retained earnings, loans from a bank and
loans from independent third party licensed money lenders.

Based on the Group's current and anticipated levels of operations, the
Group's future operations and capital requirements will be mainly financed
through loans from banks and other independent third party licensed
money lenders, retained earnings and share capital. There were no
significant commitments for capital expenditure as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits
amounted to HK$140.3 million, which were mainly denominated in Hong
Kong dollars, representing an increase of HK$108.4 million as compared to
the position as at 31 December 2019. The increase was mainly attributable
to a decrease in gross loans receivable as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
amounted to HK$48.7 million, which were all denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, representing a decrease of HK$128.2 million as compared to the
position as at 31 December 2019. The decrease was mainly attributable to
the decrease in the Group's loan portfolio at year end.

As at 31 December 2020, all outstanding interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings were repayable in one year and bore interest at variable rates.
The bank borrowings were secured by (i) a floating charge on certain loans
receivable of a subsidiary of the Group; (ii) a floating charge on certain
bank accounts of a subsidiary of the Group; and (iii) a corporate guarantee
executed by the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Group's borrowing
facilities were subject to any covenants relating to financial ratio
requirements or any material covenants that restrict the Group from
undertaking additional debt or equity financing. As at 31 December 2020,
the unutilised facility available to the Group for drawdown amounted to
HK$301.3 million (2019: HK$223.1 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Current ratio
The Group's current ratio increased from 3.4 times as at 31 December 2019
to 9.4 times as at 31 December 2020.

Gearing ratio

The Group's gearing ratio was calculated by dividing net debts (being the
total borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposit) by total equity. The Group was in a net cash position as at
31 December 2020. As at 31 December 2019, the Group has a gearing ratio
of 0.19.

Return on total assets and return on equity
The return on total assets increased from 6.3% as at 31 December 2019 to
7.1% as at 31 December 2020. The return on equity decreased from 7.9% as
at 31 December 2019 to 7.6% as at 31 December 2020.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

The Group did not have any significant investments held, material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associated companies and joint
ventures during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s operations, financial conditions, operational results and
growth prospects are affected by a number of risks and uncertainties as
outlined below. These factors are not exhaustive and there may be other
risks in addition to those shown below which are not known to the Group
or which may not be material now but could become material in the
future.

Financial risk

Financial risk factors include cash flow and fair value interest rate risk, credit
risk and liquidity risk. Details of the aforesaid financial risk factors and the
respective risk management measures are elaborated in Note 3.1 “Financial
risk factors” to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

Operational risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, human and system errors or from external
events. Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with
every function at departmental levels. Key functions in the Group are
guided by their standard operating procedures, limits of authority and
reporting framework. Management will identify and assess key operational
exposures regularly so that appropriate risk response can be taken.

Market risk

Performance of the Group’s business will be affected by various market
factors in Hong Kong, including but not limited to economic conditions
and the overall property market conditions in Hong Kong. A downturn in
the economy and/or property market in Hong Kong may result not only
in a decline in the number of real estate transactions, which may limit the
growth of the Group’s mortgage loan portfolio, but also a decline in the
value of the underlying properties in respect of the Group’s mortgage
loans, which may increase the risk of impairment of the Group’s mortgage
loan portfolio. The Group has implemented polices to carry out continuous
monitoring of the property market and the collateral value of the
underlying mortgage loan portfolio so that appropriate risk response can
be taken.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Reputational risk

The Group maintains a strong market position in the money lending
business market in Hong Kong. One of the keys to its success is its
reputation and recognition of the brand “GICL". Maintaining and
promoting brand and reputation will depend on the Group’s marketing
efforts and service quality. If existing or potential customers lose
confidence in “GICL", or in the industry in general, because of negative
publicity, the Group's performance may be negatively impacted. To
safeguard and manage the brand, the Group strives to uphold its brand
value, corporate image, and maintain high business ethics.

Risk management

The Group has established and maintained sufficient risk management
procedures to identify and control various types of risk within the
organisation and the external environment with active management
participation and effective internal control procedures in the best interest
of the Group and its shareholders. Details of its risk management system
are elaborated on pages 35 to 37 under section “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group maintains strong and close relationships with its employees
and customers and has enhanced cooperation with its business partners
SO as to ensure sustainable development.

The Group regards employees as one of the most valuable assets of the
Group and regards the personal development of its employees as highly
important. The Group (i) regularly reviews the remuneration package of
employees and makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market
standard; (ii) provides a safe working environment to its employees; and
(iii) provides continuous training support to its employees in order to drive
their personal development and improve their knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.

The Group maintains a close relationship with its customers to fulfill
their immediate and long-term financing needs. The Group has ongoing
communication with customers through various channels, such as the
Group's website, telephone, direct mail, marketing materials and social
media.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed 22 full-time employees
(2019: 22). The total employee benefit expenses (including directors’
emoluments) of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 were HKS$11.3 million and HK$12.0 million, respectively. The
remuneration of its employees included salaries, overtime allowances,
commissions and year end discretionary bonuses. The Group remunerates
its employees mainly based on current market trends, individual
performance and experience and conducts performance appraisals on an
annual basis.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The business activities of the Group were denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Directors did not consider the Group was exposed to any
significant foreign exchange risks during the financial year ended 31
December 2020. As the impact from foreign exchange exposure was
minimal, the Directors were of the view that no hedging against foreign
currency exposure was necessary. In view of the operational needs, the
Group will continue to monitor the foreign currency exposure from time to
time and take necessary actions to minimise the exchange related risks.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, certain properties mortgaged to a subsidiary
of the Group by its customers were pledged to a licensed money lender
to secure a loan facility granted to the Group. These properties, with a
combined market value of HK$238.9 million (2019: HK$418.2 million), were
mortgaged to the Group for securing loans receivable of HK$88.9 million
(2019: HK$178.1 million).

As at 31 December 2020, certain loans receivable and bank accounts of
a subsidiary of the Group with carrying value of HK$115.7 million (2019:
HK$140.2 million) and HKS$7.4 million (2019: HK$1.7 million), respectively,
were charged to a bank to secure a loan facility granted to the Group.
Those loan facilities granted to the Group were for the expansion of the
Group’s mortgage business.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wang Yao (E£ ), aged 37, is the Chairman and Chief Executive of
the Company and was appointed as Director on 20 January 2014 and
designated as an executive Director on 24 July 2014. Ms. Wang is a co-
founder of the Group and is responsible for the overall management of the
money lending business as well as strategic planning and development
of the Group. In particular, she is responsible for developing the Group’s
overall business model and product portfolio as well as formulating its
advertising and marketing strategy. Ms. Wang also serves as director to a
number of subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Wang graduated from Macquarie
University in Australia with a double bachelor's degree in applied finance
and commerce accounting in November 2006 and a master of applied
finance, also from Macquarie University, in July 2007. Ms. Wang is the
daughter of Ms. Jin. Ms. Wang is also a director of Blossom Spring Global
Limited, a company which has an interest in the shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under Division 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

Ms. Jin Xiaoqin (£BZ), aged 64, was appointed as Director on 9 April
2014 and designated as an executive Director on 24 July 2014. Ms. Jin is a
co-founder of the Group and an experienced property investor. Between
July 2006 and July 2008 she was the director of a privately held company
in Hong Kong which, through its subsidiaries, was engaged in motorcycle
manufacturing and trading business in the PRC. She is responsible for
the overall management of the Group's business and operations and
participating in monitoring of the Group'’s treasury functions. Ms. Jin is the
mother of Ms. Wang.

Ms. Yip Lee Ying (EF]&), aged 37, was appointed as an executive
Director on 28 August 2020. Ms. Yip joined the Group in February 2016
as chief financial officer and has also been appointed as the company
secretary of the Company. Ms. Yip is principally responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial management, internal control, company secretarial
and corporate finance matters. Ms. Yip has over 10 years of experience in
professional accounting and financial advisory services. Prior to joining
the Group, Ms. Yip worked at Deloitte Hong Kong from February 2007 to
January 2016 and her last position held was Associate Director at Deloitte
Advisory (Hong Kong) Limited. Ms. Yip became a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in September 2010. She
holds a Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting and Finance and a
Master of Commerce degree in Funds Management from the University of
New South Wales.
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen (REX), aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 22 November 2014.
She has about 30 years of experience in professional accounting and
corporate finance in Hong Kong, the PRC, the United States and Europe.
Dr. Ng is a practicing certified public accountant in Hong Kong, a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United
Kingdom, and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales. She is currently a director of Cosmos CPA Limited and Redwood
Asset Management Limited, a company licensed with the Securities and
Futures Commission in Hong Kong. She received her Doctor of Business
Administration Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, Juris
Doctor Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, Master of Laws
Degree in Corporate and Financial Laws from The University of Hong Kong,
Master of Business Administration Degree from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong, Master of Professional Accounting Degree from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and Master of Science in Global Finance
from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and Leonard
N. Stern School of Business of New York University. Dr. Ng is currently
an independent non-executive director of eSun Holdings Limited (stock
code: 571) and Lion Rock Group Limited (stock code: 1127), all being listed
companies in Hong Kong. She was a non-executive director of Precision
Tsugami (China) Corporation Limited (stock code: 1651), which is a listed
company in Hong Kong, from 12 December 2016 to 20 August 2018.

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis (EfEf®), aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 22 November 2014.
Mr. Tang was called to the Bar of Hong Kong in the High Court of Hong
Kong in December 2001 and since then has been a practising barrister
and a member of the Hong Kong Bar Association. Mr. Tang has been
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators since 2019
and an arbitrator of the Guangzhou Arbitration Commission since 2020.
Mr. Tang graduated from the University of Toronto in June 1998 with a
bachelor of applied science major in computer engineering. He obtained
the postgraduate diploma in English and Hong Kong law from Manchester
Metropolitan University in July 2000 and the postgraduate certificate in
laws from The University of Hong Kong in June 2001. Mr. Tang was also
an independent non-executive director of Elegance Optical International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 907), being a listed company in Hong Kong,
from 15 July 2019 to 31 December 2019. In 2019, Mr. Tang was appointed
as a deputy magistrate in Hong Kong at the West Kowloon Magistrates’
Courts. In 2020, Mr. Tang was appointed as a deputy magistrate in Hong
Kong at the Kowloon City Magistrates’ Courts
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Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick (X#¥), aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 January 2016.
Mr. Man is currently the managing director of the investment banking
department of Guosen Securities (HK) Capital Co., Ltd.. Mr. Man has over
10 years of experience in the corporate finance field. Mr. Man obtained a
Bachelor's Degree of Business Administration from Simon Fraser University,
Canada in October 1993. He has been an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2000 and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since
September 2003.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ng Yiu Lun (fR¥Bf& 55 ££), aged 46, joined the Group in February 2009
and has been serving as the senior credit manager of the Group. Mr. Ng
has over 10 years of experience in money lending business and is mainly
responsible for managing the Group’s business operation with a focus on
credit and risk management functions. Mr. Ng was an executive Director of
the Company from 30 July 2018 to 27 August 2020.

Ms. Chan Mei Chun (BR3E¥), aged 42, joined the Group in February
2009 as senior relationship manager and is responsible for management of
customer relationships.
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Relevant Period").
The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining high standards
of corporate governance consistent with the needs and requirements of its
business and Shareholders to enable them to evaluate how the principles
of corporate governance have been applied. The corporate governance
principles of the Company emphasise a high quality Board, sound internal
controls, and transparency and accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company has adopted and complied with the code provisions as
set out under the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. During the Relevant Period,
the Company has complied with the Code Provisions except for the
following deviations:

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1, the role of chairman and the chief
executive should be segregated and should not be performed by the same
individual. However, the Company does not have a separate chairman and
chief executive and Ms. Wang Yao currently performs these two roles. The
Board believes that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive
in the same position has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership
within the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall strategic
planning for the Group. A balance of power and authority between
the Board and management can be ensured by the operation of the
Board, whose members (including the three independent non-executive
directors) are individuals with ample experience, such that the interests of
shareholders can be safeguarded. Furthermore, the Directors had regular
discussions in relation to major matters affecting the operations of the
Group and the Group has an effective risk management and internal
control systems in place for providing adequate checks and balances. The
Board considers that the balance of power and authority for the present
arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will enable the
Company to make and implement decisions promptly and effectively. The
Board will continue to review and consider splitting the roles of chairman
of the Board and chief executive of the Company at a time when it is
appropriate and suitable by taking into account the circumstances of the
Group as a whole.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders; while
pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2, the chairman of the Board should attend
the annual general meeting ("AGM"). The chairperson of the Board, Ms.
Wang Yao, and one of the independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Tang,
Warren Louis were unable to attend the Company’'s AGM held on 29 June
2020 due to other business commitments. Other Directors including
executive and independent non-executive Directors, attended the AGM to
answer questions regarding activities of the Group.

In light of this situation, the Directors consider that the aforementioned
does not have any material impact on the corporate governance of the
Company during the Relevant Period.

The Directors will carry out a regular review on the Company’s corporate
governance policies and will propose any amendment, if necessary, to
ensure compliance with the Code Provisions from time to time.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board currently comprises six Directors, being three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors, with a variety
and a balance of skills and experience in accounting, business, finance,
investment and legal profession. The current composition of the Board is
as follows:

EEERRE (F)

Exg

EZEHE

EXCHAAANBRESRMEAN I=2HRTEF
R=2BIIFNTESR  REHRBZHIIHNY
BRi k&R REG  BX 2R RE
RAREER - EFGRERBIEOT ¢

Directors Membership of Board Committee(s)
= E=ZESHERYK
Executive Directors:
BITES:
Ms. Wang Yao (Chairman and Chief Executive) Chairman of the Nomination Committee
ITERAT(FERES) REZEGERE
Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEEEKE
Ms. Jin Xiaogin
eHBEE+
Ms. Yip Lee Ying
BER&z+
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES :
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen Chairman of the Audit Committee
REXEL BEREEEEFE
Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEEEKE
Member of the Nomination Committee
REEEGKE
Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
MBHEE FMEEeEE
Member of the Audit Committee
EREEGKE
Member of the Nomination Committee
REEEGKE
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis Member of the Audit Committee
EEmEE EREEGKE
Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEEEKE
Member of the Nomination Committee
REEZEEKE
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Save for Ms. Wang Yao who is the daughter of Ms. Jin Xiaogin and Ms.
Jin Xiaogin who is the mother of Ms. Wang Yao, the Directors have no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

The Code Provisions require directors to disclose to the issuer the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and
other significant commitments as well as the nature of such companies
or organisations and the time involved in such offices. Each Director has
agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely manner.

Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, every board of directors of
a listed issuer must include at least three independent non-executive
directors. In addition, pursuant to Rules 3.10A and 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules, every listed issuer is required to have such number of independent
non-executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board, and
at least one of whom must have appropriate professional qualifications,
or accounting or related financial management expertise. Dr. Ng Lai Man,
Carmen who is a practicing certified public accountant in Hong Kong, a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom
and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, is
regarded as an appropriate person to fulfill this requirement.

BRIBRZTREBESLINAEREBREL L
RIBZTOERI  SESZRARET T
X5 RicskHMER FERERBAE -

ARFCEERBIIFNTESLRR EHRA
FIBEREBIMELNFEERE - RIE
EHRAIAEEB RS ARFRE 2
BELIFATEFTYRBIAL -

SRR EEFTRABTARBEERARA
AISEBETRUMEE REEUREMBER
EYE - MERBERYS RO AR A B AR
AUNEEERABBAENER  SEF
B R B R AR B 3 FE R F R B RIE -

BIE EMARBIEII0NE - EWEITANES
SABBEEL BB UIFNTES - 1IN IR
B EMMHRAZEII0AMEREII0E - & EhE
TARBIYIENTEENAGNEETEHE AK
Er=prz— BEREDL—BBIIERITE
EVEEBREZEEER  HEAEEEESF X
HEVHERER - REXNE T AEERED
RN BESEHMAE AEBHFARIEE
REURREERBERTFTSTMAgER
28  BERAGHEEERNEGEAL -
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The Board meets regularly and at least four times a year. During the
Relevant Period, the Board has held four board meetings, and the AGM of
the Company was held on 29 June 2020. The attendance of each Director
at these meetings are stated as follows:

Members of the Board

meetings regularly held

EEERRE (F)

EFgTHRTEReR:  AeFRL AT
Ko RNIEBHME EFEgRBTUNRESS
Z o MARRNR-_ZE-_ZENA-+HBET
THRERBFRE - SEFHEZSTEZ 22BN
E (N

Attendance/
Number of general
meetings held

Attendance/
Number of Board

HERE HERE
EEERE EZSERERBETRY BRRAEETRE
Executive Directors:
HITESE :
Ms. Wang Yao (Chairman and Chief Executive) 4/4 0/1
TR (FELEZ)
Mr. Ng Yiu Lun (resigned on 28 August 2020) 2/2 11
EReEE(RZZE_SFNA=TN\BET)
Ms. Jin Xiaogin 3/4 0/1
TRELL
Ms. Yip Lee Ying (appointed on 28 August 2020) 2/2 N/A
BERNBzt+(R=ZE=EFNA=TNBEZT) NEA
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen 4/4 11
REXIEL
Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick 4/4 11
po P
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis 3/4 0/1
EEREE

Note: Attendance of the Directors appointed or resigned during the year were made by
reference to the number of such meetings held during their respective tenures.

RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is accountable to stakeholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among other
things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review corporate and
financial policies and the oversight of the management of the Group's
business and affairs.

The management, consisting of the executive Directors along with other
senior executives, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing the
strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to time, and
conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors
and senior executives meet regularly to review the performance of the
businesses of the Group as a whole, co-ordinate overall resources and
make financial and operational decisions. The Board also gives clear
directions as to their powers of management including circumstances
where management should report back, and will review the delegation
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate
to the needs of the Group.

M RENEZEAFEEENERABD2ERERA
THRRSTHNEBASHRBIEL -

EENEERETIK

ExepAKERASRREAMNDMERAAL
BE GCETZBE/(EHEIE)HIFTER
B BWECENMPBHE  UREEAKED
EBREBHER -

BEREE(BEATER)EREMBSRITRAR
ERRBENTESS TR R SR Mg T
WHETARENEELE - AITEERSRTT
BAEEEHEE MR AEEEBEER
B ARBBERRMELPBREERE - &
FENERSEERNBENRNG TBMET -
BREEEASEERENER - e TR
RIRZHE - NERBELZHIEANEENTE
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All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of
the Company and its Shareholders at all times.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the independent non-
executive Directors without the presence of other executive Directors was
held to discuss the matters that they wish to raise.

In compliance with Code Provision A.6.5, the Group will arrange for, and
provide funds for, all the Directors to participate in continuous professional
development (“CPD") to help them refresh their knowledge, skills and
understanding of the Group and its business or to update their skills and
knowledge on the latest development or changes in the relevant statutes,
the Listing Rules and corporate governance practices. The Company will
also update the Directors of any material changes in the Listing Rules and
corporate governance practices from time to time.

During the year, all the Directors have participated in CPD, by attending
external training or seminars, attending in-house training, participating in
e-learning and/or reading materials on various topics covering regulations,
corporate governance, finance and business, to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills, which ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Directors have provided records of
training to the Company with details as below:

Directors

E=

Executive Directors:

HITESE

Ms. Wang Yao

FELL

Mr. Ng Yiu Lun (resigned on 28 August 2020)
MRRfeEE(RZE_ZEF N ANATN\BEE)
Ms. Jin Xiaogin

THRELL

Ms. Yip Lee Ying (appointed on 28 August 2020)
ERNBEZLT(RZZE_TFENAT/\BEEZME)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

REXEL

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick

S 56

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

FRMmEL

EREFARRRABTRE - BTERED
FOER » WREAIBHRI A AR R R EBRRD
MeEITE -

FREFEBYFNTEFEERMATE
ERENBRTRIT-REHE - WIwKES
BERRHMEER -

RIBTRMEXFEACSIE  AEBBBEER R
BEF2UERBEEXER([FEEXERDE
B S BRI - e R YK EEE XN
2R - RBERER - LTRAIRERERER
RRHMERIEE  WERERAE - ARF
MABREERHEEH MR REEERT
HREEMEREBHNREHER -

FR2RERC2HEKAEZTELRR 212
PSNRIB IS T & - S AEPLE - 28
EEIRSBEAERE BEER BB
REBESFERENER  BRAFHEMNH
Kicgt  WiEREESEEBEEEMLIE
PIBEMBATHEZSELER - REFER
AR ARBEEZIEERCE - BRANEIT

Type of CPD programmes
FEEXRRAERE

Participating in e-learning Reading materials or updates

284 F 3| BIEM B REHER

< < = =<
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The terms of reference of Nomination Committee include a nomination
procedure specifying the process and criteria for selection and
recommendation of candidates for directorships of the Company.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement or
a letter of appointment with the Company regarding the appointment
as an executive Director for a term of three years and shall be subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company (the “Articles”). Each of the service
agreement and letter of appointment is renewable automatically upon
the expiry of the then current term of appointment, unless terminated by
either party in accordance with the terms thereof.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years and shall
be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings in accordance with the Articles, unless otherwise terminated
in accordance with the relevant letter of appointment. The annual
remuneration payable by the Company to each of the independent non-
executive Directors is HK$240,000 according to the respective letter of
appointment.

Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles, the Directors shall have power at
any time and from time to time to appoint any person to be a Director,
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing Directors. Any
Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next general meeting
of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Furthermore, pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles, at each AGM of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation. Every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The retiring
Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (the “Company’s Code”)
regarding securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standards set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries,
the Company confirms that all the Directors have complied with the
required standards as stated in the Model Code and the Company’s Code
throughout the Relevant Period.

RERKRE (F)

ZE EERBRES

REZEGZRESENRE —EREEF
FIBAEE RIEBE AN R EEREA ZIRFIRE o

BHTESENREZERATERTEALRT
AIVEHMR=FNORBHELZREIR  KEFR
RBARAMABERAR([AR DRBERBAF
RELWESREERET - FRBBALE
EREEREMERR O BED  BRIFREM
— I IRBEARR T AR L -

BRI TETCDEARARIEMA=F
MZRER - FRREBBZEHOEMLT T
RSN - REARBANNBRBFEANEG L
BERLEEET - RESENEZERH A2
A & F L IR 1T E 1 5F [ #7 B /5240,000

ABIT °

RIBARE 16215  EFERMER R THRE
FRALTHEES  NERRETEENERZ
RVERITILES - I Ll T AR R ENEM
EXEHEEARA TERRASETHRIL
ER KA ERNE EERET -

SN - RIBARIE16.181K - EARBBRERR
BEReL EREE=D2zEF(WESA
U= BHE  ARAREOENIR=0
Z—ZHB)ERERET BREFASKIE=
FWHERT R ZFRIEEFHTEERE
BB -

BTREXHZNRESTA

ARBICHESTETESFRIRMN—ERTE
AN(TRBZERI]) - T fRRIE AR b i 4% B Bt
BTASLEmETAERETEFRINEE
STANTRZESTRI D MR E R - ZEIFH AT
Mg ARFERTRESNHEBERE - 5—
BETIREST R R A RERIFAE MR EER -
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the audit committee
(the "Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All
Board committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and are
available to Shareholders upon request.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 22 November 2014 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and paragraph C.3 of the Code Provisions as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst other things:

(i)  to propose the appointment or removal of the external auditors and
the effectiveness of the audit process;

(i) to discuss with the external auditor on the nature and scope of the
audit work prior to commencement of the audit work;

(iii) to review the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
procedures;

(iv) to ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors
and to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Group, and to review and
monitor its effectiveness;

(v) toreview the Company'’s financial information and disclosure thereof,
and to consider any significant or unusual items that are, or may need
to be, reflected in the reports and accounts;

(vi) to review and supervise the Group's financial controls, internal
control and risk management systems and their implementation; and

(vii) to review the arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
financial reporting improprieties.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee consisted
of Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick and Mr. Tang,
Warren Louis, all of whom are independent non-executive Directors. The
chairman of the Audit Committee is Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen who holds the
appropriate professional qualifications as required under Rules 3.10(2) and
3.21 of the Listing Rules.

This annual report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

EEXREE

Exgcu=EZ8e AMERZEe((&
“ZZBe)])  FMEZEe([HFMEEE )RR
#ZEE([REZBE])  UEBARREE
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ENEEBESENY EFZESNRESR
B EHRARF LB PTE R - I AR A
RERAEER -

EREES

AR ER L AR RIS 321 5 e £ AR A
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AZ+T-BRIBZEZE S - XHlF] EmBE
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() BEBEEZEHERINEXREREZEFD
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(iv) FEORQEE M SNISAZ BRAD < B0 107 5 - b B
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E /=] $& | (nla)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings of the Audit HE-_Z-_ZEF+_A=1+—BHILEE &
Committee were held (with the attendance of the Company’s external ZB & 8T A e 5 (KAATIMNEZEAE B
auditor in compliance with the Code Provisions and the Audit Committee’s EUFA TR R EZEZERESE) - &
terms of reference), with the members' respective record of attendance as B& B 2 HEREWT ¢

follows:

Members of the Audit Committee

ERZEEERE

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES :

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen (Chairman of Audit Committee)
REXNEL(FRZEELE)

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick

Mgt

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

FRMmEL

During the Relevant Period, the Audit Committee has performed the
following work:

1. reviewed the annual report and the annual results announcement for
the year ended 31 December 2019, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval;

2. reviewed the interim report and the interim results announcement
for the six months ended 30 June 2020, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

3. considered and recommended to the Board the auditors’ fee and the
re-appointment of the Company’s independent external auditor;

4. reviewed the internal control review report prepared by an
independent external reviewer; and

5. reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control and
risk management system of the Group.

Attendance/

Number of Audit
Committee meeting held
HERE,
EREESEREBIRY

2/2
2/2

1/2

RAERAENE - EREZEECET MIRE ¢

EHNEE_ZT-NFT_A=1+—HLF
EOFREFEREAE  IRREFS
I8

%Fﬁj@i 7—7£E/\H —f—ElJ_]:/\{.H
MR HmE NP ERERE  YERES
@B

ERMAESEEAZHMNE R LER K
NESINE B AZBED

ERINE B EZ B RENOANEIEER
HE R

B AREARNEZEREREEHIERSS
FRMBR -
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Auditor’s remuneration

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible for considering
the appointment and re-election of our Company’s external auditor and
reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the external auditor,
including whether such non-audit functions could lead to any potential
material adverse effect to the Company. PricewaterhouseCoopers is the
external auditor of the Company. For the year ended 31 December 2020,
the external auditor received the following remuneration for audit and
non-audit services provided to the Group:

2 B8 Bl B 32 A
ARRERZRECARERREMNENEMER
RAEINBIZEED - LA R B INEZBEEITH
EFEEZBAE  BRAMIFEZRBEEDE
HARBEZBEEATNEE - BERUKE
ERGIESERIPSRNNCIEINE 23 Gl
“EFEFT A=+ -BIEFE - SNBRBER
R EAZ MIFE RS T AN B M 4R A0 B &
s

HK$'000
F

Audit services EZRE
Non-audit services IEEAZIRTS
Interim review services R EAR B AR S
Taxation services % AR
Total 4t

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 22 November 2014 with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1 of the Code
Provisions as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include, amongst
other things:

() to make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for all Directors’ and senior management’s remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy;

(i) to review and approve management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

(i) to consider and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages and overall benefits paid to the Directors and
senior management;

(iv) to review and approve compensation payable to executive Directors
and senior management for any loss or termination of office or
appointment; and

(v) to review and approve compensation arrangements relating to
dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct.

800

200
63

1,063

FMEES

RN AR E B RR T AR BB 8% 1 19 Bk <7 BIHE ST
FRIBR —_E—NF+— A+ BRI HM
LEe  WHIFTZEBESE -

FMZEENTIZREBE(ETRE)
() HEREZLRSREEENFTMERLR

18 DA B RRSL IE R 2L B 0 38 M BRI/ T
BFF - AEFSRHER:

W\

(i) S2REFENLEHIHEERRT L IE
B E R F BN

(i) ZRXNTEZERSMRELENTMTB
REREMNLREAEESREER

(v) e RitERRTESRSREEEME
TRFR BB T EMENFE : K&

v BERLEREFETA/TEMHEREKRER
ERESEAMSRMELH -
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration Committee
consisted of one executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors: Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick, Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, Mr. Tang,
Warren Louis and Ms. Wang Yao. The chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings of the

Remuneration Committee were held with the member’s respective record
of attendance as follows:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

FMEEERE

Independent Non-executive Directors:

BYFHTES:

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick (Chairman of Remuneration Committee)
MBNERE(FNEE ST E)

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

REBEXEL

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

FRMmEL

Executive Director:
HITES :

Ms. Wang Yao
FELL

During the Relevant Period, the Remuneration Committee has performed
the following work:

1. reviewed and recommended to the Board on the remuneration
packages of executive Directors and senior management based on
their performance;

2. reviewed and recommended to the Board on the Group’s
remuneration policy;

3. reviewed and recommended to the Board the terms of letter of
appointment of independent non-executive Directors; and

4. reviewed and recommended to the Board the level of remuneration
for independent non-executive Directors and ensure that their level
of remuneration are linked to their contribution in terms of time
commitment and responsibilities undertaken.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EEERRE (F)

BE-T-TE+-A=+—AIL5E - #H
ZHEH - BRTEFR=BBUFNTEE
MR ;SRS - RSB L
RERLL - HBIE B G ERATRKSESE -

BE-—T-TFE+-A=+—AILFE  HH
FERBBIMARE  RESHZHELDY
mF :

Attendance/

Number of Remuneration
Committee meeting held

HERE,
FHEEEERETRE
2/2

2/2

1/2

2/2
RAERAERME - FMEZ B ST MITUAT T

. BRTEEREMEEBZRARNER
Bt Rt MBS R R

2. REAKEFMBERALMLFNESTSRN
et

3. BABUFRTERZESGRRLMLR
BEERbESZ R

4. BABUIFRITEENHBKT LR
EEEROES  URERBRFOHK
FRREERRRARMAEZEREETED
BRAE -

BRAESOFMA BN A HFE B HRAM T30
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REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Code Provisions, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management (as described under the section
"Directors and Senior Management”) by band for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out below:

Remuneration band

HER
HK$1 to HK$1,000,000

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on 22
November 2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph A.5 of the Code Provisions as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, amongst other
things:

(i)  to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and to
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the corporate strategy;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of the
Board and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorship;

(iii)  to assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and

(iv) to consider and make recommendations to the Board regarding the
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee
consisted of one executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors: Ms. Wang Yao, Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick
and Mr. Tang, Warren Louis. The chairman of the Nomination Committee is
Ms. Wang Yao.

1B ITE 1,000,000/ 7T

BREFBTNESREEREKEFHMH

BT RIS BRI 58 HE-B-BE+=
A=+— B ERERESOBRERER
B(REFRBREER]— B HHE5I
mF -

Number of individuals

AB

REZEE
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HEMEEEHNEEURE RN E
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(il MEAREEERAIETIESESEKRENA
T WHBEER A TREHEEEIH
BABEEGRIER

(i) BN IFRITESHELE R

(v ZEEREENER(LERIFEREH)
AT B MEESREER -

HE-T-BF+-A=+—ALFE 8%
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e TREL  REXL  OBEELER
ERfsEE - REZERIRATRLL -
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, two meetings of the
Nomination Committee were held with the member's respective record of
attendance as follows:

Members of the Nomination Committee

REZSSNE

Executive Director:

HITESE

Ms. Wang Yao (Chairman of Nomination Committee)
IRLT(BEZEETRE)
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

REXEL

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick

MBS

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

EERmEE

During the Relevant Period, the Nomination Committee has performed the
following work:

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

2. discussed and recommended to the Board the appointment of an
executive Director;

3. discussed and recommended to the Board the re-appointment of
Directors;

4. reviewed and assessed the independence of independent non-
executive Directors of the Company; and

5. reviewed the diversity policy and nomination policy adopted.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Group has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”) to
govern the criteria, procedures and process of nomination of Directors.
The Nomination Policy sets out, inter alia, the selection criteria, the
evaluation and procedures in nominating candidates to be appointed
or re-appointed as Directors of the Company for ensuring that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives which are
appropriate to the requirements of the Group’s business.

Criteria for nomination and appointment of Directors

When identifying, assessing and recommending suitable candidates for
directorship for the Board's consideration, the Nomination Committee will
have regard to, but without limitation, the following criteria:

-  skills, competence, experience, expertise, professional and
educational qualifications, background and personal qualities of the
candidate that will best complement the effectiveness and current
composition of the Board;

- capability of the candidate to devote the necessary, sufficient time
and commitment to carry out his duties. In this regard, the number
and nature of offices held in public companies or organizations, other
executive appointments or other significant commitments will be
considered;

- potential conflicts of interest and assessment of the independence of
the candidate; and

- other factors as the Nomination Committee may deem are in the best
interests of the Company and its Shareholders.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-
executive director (“INED"), his or her independence shall be assessed
in accordance with, among other things, the factors as set out in the
Listing Rules. Where applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education,
qualifications and experience shall also be evaluated to consider whether
he or she has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise for filling the office of an INED
with such qualifications or expertise as required under the Listing Rules.
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Nomination procedure and process

The Nomination Policy includes the following procedure and process in
respect of the nomination of Directors, subject to the provisions of the
Company’s Articles:

- any member of the nomination committee or the Board may invite
and nominate suitable candidates; and external recruitment agencies
may be engaged to assist in identifying and selecting suitable
candidates, if considered necessary;

- the Nomination Committee shall evaluate the nomination based on
criteria set under the Nomination Policy and Board Diversity Policy
and make recommendation to the Board, including the terms and
conditions of the appointment, for its consideration and approval;

- in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors, the
Nomination Committee shall review the candidate’s overall
contribution and performance and make recommendations to the
Board and/or the shareholders for consideration in connection with
his/her re-election at general meetings; and

- for any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as a
director at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination
Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such candidate based
on the criteria as set out above to determine whether such candidate
is qualified for directorship.

The Nomination Policy is subject to review from time to time to ensure
that it continues to be relevant to the needs of the Company and reflects
current regulatory requirements and good governance practice.
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BOARD DIVERSITY

With a view to enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance,
the Board should include a balanced composition of executive and non-
executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) so
that there is a strong independence element on the Board, which can
effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy with measurable
objectives. The Nomination Committee evaluates the balance and blend
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives of the Board. Selection
of candidates is based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to age, cultural and educational background, professional
and industry experience, skills, knowledge, ethnicity and other qualities
essential to the Company’s business, and merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Board will review such
measurable objectives from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
and ascertain the progress made towards achieving those objectives.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board recognises that corporate governance should be the collective
responsibility of Directors and their corporate governance duties include:

(i)  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

(i) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv) todevelop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(v) to review the Company’s compliance with the Code Provisions and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

During the Relevant Period, the Board has performed the corporate
governance duties in accordance with its terms of reference.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

Financial results of the Group are announced in a timely manner in
accordance with all statutory requirements, particularly the timeframe
stipulated in Rule 13.49(1) and (6) of the Listing Rules. All Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial statements
of the Group on a going concern basis, with supporting assumptions or
qualifications as necessary, for each financial period which give a true
and fair view of the Group’s financial affairs. The Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The statement of the auditors about their reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 65 to 71 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is its duty to monitor the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis and
review their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

During the Relevant Period, the Board, through the Audit Committee,
conducted review of both design and implementation effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group, covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions are adequate. In this respect, the Audit
Committee communicates any material issues to the Board.

During the Relevant Period, the Group appointed SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited to independently perform internal control review of the Group’s
internal control systems.

The results of the independent review and assessment were reported to
the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover, improvements in internal
control measures as recommended by SHINEWING Risk Services Limited
to enhance the internal control systems of the Group were adopted by
the Board. No significant area of concern that may affect the financial,
operational, compliance, control and risk management of the Group has
been identified.
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The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The Board has the overall
responsibility to maintain the adequacies of resources, staff qualifications
and experience training programs and budget of accounting and financial
reporting function. Based on the findings and recommendations of
SHINEWING Risk Services Limited, reports from the Group’s management
as well as the comments of the Audit Committee, and the Board
considered the internal control and risk management systems effective
and adequate.

Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group has established its enterprise risk management framework in
2016. While the Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective internal controls are maintained, management is responsible
for designing and implementing an internal control system to manage all
kinds of risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks are
identified, assessed, prioritised and allocated treatments. The Group's risk
management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk Management
- Integrated Framework, which allows the Board and management to
manage the risks of the Group effectively. The Board receives regular
reports through the Audit Committee that oversights risk management
and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks
The principal risks and relevant measures taken by the Group is set out on
pages 14 to 15 under the section "Management Discussion and Analysis” of
this annual report.

Our Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate governance
structure with operational management and controls performed by
operations management, coupled with risk management monitoring
carried out by the finance team and independent internal audit
outsourced to and conducted by SHINEWING Risk Services Limited. The
Group maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified major risks of
the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the Audit Committee, and
management with a profile of its major risks and records management'’s
action taken to mitigate the relevant risks. Each risk is evaluated at least
annually based on its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon
the Group. The risk register is updated by management as the risk owners
with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if applicable, at
least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has been performed. This
review process can ensure that the Group proactively manages the risks
faced by it in the sense that all risk owners have access to the risk register
and are aware of and alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so
that they can take follow-up action in an efficient manner.
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Risk management activities of the Group are performed by management
on an ongoing process. The effectiveness of the risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic management
meeting is held to update the progress of risk monitoring efforts.
Management is committed to ensure that risk management forms part of
the daily business operation processes in order to align risk management
with corporate goals in an effective manner. The Board acknowledged that
it had received a confirmation from the management on the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management framework of the Group.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group. The Board
has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view
that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the
Group, it would be more cost effective to appoint external independent
professionals to perform internal audit function for the Group in order to
meet its needs. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review at least
annually the need for an internal audit function.

Inside Information

The Company has set up an information disclosure policy (the “Disclosure
Policy”) to ensure that the Company shall be in strict compliance with the
disclosure obligation of inside information, that inside information remains
confidential until the disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved, and the dissemination of such information is efficiently and
consistently made. The Company acknowledges its obligations under
Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules and the principles of inside information
as set forth in the Securities and Futures Ordinance. The Disclosure Policy
stipulated responsibilities, guidelines and logistics in the assessment,
approval and dissemination of inside information, strictly prohibited
unauthorised use of confidential information and established procedures
for responding to external enquires or rumours.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Yip Lee Ying was appointed by the Board as the Company Secretary of
the Company in April 2016 and she is also an executive Director and the
chief financial officer of the Group. The Company Secretary supports the
Chairman in promoting the highest standards of corporate governance
and facilitates the effective functioning of the Board and its committees.
All Directors have direct access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary. The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman on board
governance matters, and is responsible for ensuring that board procedures
are followed and for facilitating timely and appropriate information flows
among directors. Ms. Yip has taken no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training on review of Listing Rules and other compliance
requirements during the year.

The biography of the Company Secretary is set out under the section
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company aims to promote and maintain effective communications
with Shareholders and investors (both individuals and institutions) to
ensure that the Group's information is disseminated to Shareholders and
potential investors in a timely manner and enable them to have a clear
assessment of the enterprise performance.

Extensive information on the Group's activities and financial position
will be disclosed in the annual reports, interim reports, announcements,
circulars and other corporate communications which will be sent to
Shareholders and/or published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.gicl.com.hk).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant
to which the Company may distribute dividends to the shareholders of the
Company by way of cash or shares. Any distribution of dividends shall be in
accordance with the Articles.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend
will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In proposing any
dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia, the
Group's earnings per share; financial conditions including its liquidity
position and capital and debt level; long-term earning capacity; expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirement and future
expansion plans; Shareholders’” and investors’ expectation and industry’s
norm; the market sentiment and circumstances; and any other factors that
the Board considers relevant and appropriate.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific
periods.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

General Meeting

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. The Chairman
of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, or in their absence, their duly
appointed delegates are available to answer questions at the Shareholders’
meetings. The auditor of the Company is also invited to attend the
Company’s AGM and is available to assist the Directors in addressing
queries from Shareholders relating to the conduct of the audit and the
preparation and contents of the Independent Auditor's Report. Separate
resolutions are proposed at Shareholders’ meetings on each substantial
issue, including the election of individual Directors.

Notice of the AGM together with related papers are sent to the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the meeting, setting
out details of each proposed resolution, voting procedures and other
relevant information. All votes of Shareholders at the general meeting will
be decided by poll, where appropriate, in accordance with Article 13.7. The
Chairman will explain such rights and procedures during the AGM before
voting on the resolutions. An independent scrutineer will be appointed to
count the votes and the poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange after the AGM.

Shareholders can make a requisition to convene an extraordinary general
meeting ("EGM") pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles. The procedures for
the Shareholders to convene an EGM are as follows:

1. Any two or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist”) holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings shall have the right, by written notice, to require an EGM to
be called by the directors for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition.

2. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board of the
Company signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
following address:

Principal place of business of the Company

Address: Unit 01, 23/F, World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong
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3. If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting within 21
days of such deposit, the Requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them may do so in the same manner which shall be held no later
than the day which falls three months after the expiration of the
said twenty-one day period, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the Requisitionist as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to direct enquiries to the
Company

For matters in relation to the Board, Shareholders can contact the
Company at the following:

Address:  Unit 01, 23/F, World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central,

Hong Kong
Email: info@gic.com.hk
Tel: (852) 21110998
Fax: (852) 21110819

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and
registration, change of name or address, loss of share certificates or
dividend warrants, the registered Shareholders can contact:

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited

Address:  Room 2103B, 21/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2153 1688

Fax: (852) 3020 5058
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Relevant Period, there has been no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

Procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals

at Shareholders’ meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her proposal (the
"Proposal”) together with his/her detailed contact information at the
Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit 01, 23/F,
World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong in the same
manner as set out above.

The request will be verified by the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Board will be asked to include the Proposal in the agenda for the
general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for consideration of
the Proposal raised by the Shareholder concerned at the general meeting
varies according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(@) Atleast 21 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires approval by
way of a special resolution of the Company in an EGM or resolution of
the Company in an AGM.

(b) At least 14 days’ notice in writing if the Proposal requires approval in
any other EGM.
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RE HERERB®WSE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

Global International Credit Group Limited (the “Company” together with
its subsidiaries (the “Group”)) is pleased to issue the Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG") Report for the year ended 31 December 2020
("FY2020") which outlines its policies and practices in four aspects, namely
environmental protection, human resources, operating practice and
community involvement, with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide (the
"ESG Guide”") as set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) for disclosures.

As a responsible and caring corporate citizen, the Group upholds the
principle that good business practices and corporate social responsibility
are vital for the sustainability of its success. The Board is responsible
for the Group's ESG strategy and reporting. The Group has established
an ESG working team to engage the management and employees
across all functions in order to identify relevant ESG issues and to assess
their materiality to the Group’s business as well as the Company’s
stakeholders, through reviewing our operations and internal discussions.
The Group also recognises its responsibility to be accountable to all its
stakeholders, including clients, potential investors and shareholders,
employees, nongovernmental organisations (NGOs) and local community.
Understanding the needs and expectations of the stakeholders is the
key to the Group's success. As each stakeholder requires a different
engagement approach, the Group has established a tailor-made
communication method, in order to better meet each stakeholder’s
expectations.

Scope of the Report
Unless otherwise stated, this report covers the Group's head office and all
the operating subsidiaries of the Group.

For this year, the material ESG issues are those which have or may have a
significant impact on:

The Hong Kong mortgage loan market;
The environment or sociality now or in the future;
Our financial performance or operations; and/or

Our stakeholders’ assessment, decisions and actions.

Feedback

This report is designed to allow our stakeholders and the public to have
a more comprehensive and profound understanding of the Group's
corporate social responsibility and culture. We welcome feedback and
comments on to this report and its contents which will lead us to create
further common value. Please feel free to provide your comments by email
to info@gic.com.hk.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

The Group actively strives to better understand our stakeholders and
engage them to ensure that improvements are implemented to our
products and services. We strongly believe that our stakeholders would
play a crucial role for sustaining the success of our business in the

challenging market.

Stakeholders
Flz=EEEA L

Possible concerned issues

BEMBEEE

Rk - ERERHRS (B)

BMHAZHEBEAL

AEBBBRY A E 40T RN EABEA LI
ARERER - BMRRMERMRBEMRLE
BFIRE - MEBBEATEEBRTmEN
MSRENSRN T EEEREZNAE

Communication and responses

AERLE

HKEx
BERBXS M
Government
BFF

Shareholders/

Investors

BRBREE

Media & Public

HERAR

Customers

5F

Employees

==

Community

HE

Compliance of listing rules, timely and accurate
announcements

BT ETRR - R ERED TR QS

Compliance of laws and regulations, preventing tax
evasion, and social welfare

ESPREEM - B R R At g E Al

Corporate governance system, business strategies
and performance, investment returns

ERERHE XHERBERERR - REE R

Corporate governance, environmental protection,
human right

PEER  RRRE - AR

Quality of loan services, repayment terms,
handling time, reasonable interest costs, privacy
protection

ERRBEER  BEGR  RIERMHE - 2EF
B~ FLBRARE

Rights and benefits, employee compensation,
training and development, work hours, working
environment

RN RN - EEWRB - FIEEE - TER
fE -~ TERE

Community environment, employment and
community development, social welfare

HERE EBEMERERE LR

Meetings, training, workshops, programs, website
updates and announcements

25 B e 58 BUEMRAE

Interaction and visits, government inspections, tax
returns and other information

BEFNRFD  BIFRE - ARBERLEGTY

Organising and participating in seminars,
interviews, shareholders’ meetings, financial
reports or operation reports for investors, media
and analysts

BB 2EAREE BRI ABRHN
g Sk RRAG - RESFHRETER
EXEERE

Issue of newsletters on the Group's website
RE BB LA RS

After-sales services

BRI

Trainings, interviews for employees, issuing
employee handbooks, internal memos,
employee suggestion boxes

B BESETES  BEREIFM - AE

Developing community activities, employee
voluntary activities and community welfare
subsidies and donations

BBt REE  EEEREEIA N BRI
AL % 1B 5
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R - ERERHRS (B)

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to leading by example, inspiring others to strive
for environmental sustainability, and minimising our environmental
impacts from operations. We have implemented eco-friendly measures to
reduce carbon footprint in our business operations. During FY2020, there
was no material non-compliance issue with relevant laws and regulations
related to the environment.

Emission

As a provider of money lending services, the Group's operations do
not have a material impact on the environment in relation to pollutant
emissions. Nevertheless, the Group still indirectly generates greenhouse
gas ("GHG") emission through our consumption of electricity and
production of paper waste at the Group’s headquarter. Several measures
to reduce the Group’'s GHG emissions have been implemented to
demonstrate the Group’s determination of maintaining environmental
sustainability. Those measures included promoting paperless office by
usage of tablets, encouraging double-sided printing, and encouraging
employees to switch off all idle appliances.

During FY2020, the Group's total GHG emissions was approximately 24.8
tonnes (FY2019: 28.0 tonnes) and the total GHG emission per average
employee was 1.13 tonnes (FY2019: 1.27 tonnes). The decrease in total
GHG emission was mainly due to the decrease in paper waste disposal and
electricity consumption.

RIGRE

AEBMEANOAGER - BMBEEM AR BIRER
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AW F— NERBEE 12720) < BER
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BEHDAE -

2020 2019

—EC-BE —E-NEF

HK$'000 HKS$'000

GHG emissions (in tonnes) BERBEHER (LA TFE T FAT
Indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) M RER YR (EED)

— Electricity consumption (in tonnes) —FEE=(AAMEE) 22.5 249
Other indirect GHG emissions (Scope 3) HERERE R m(EHEES3)

- Disposal of paper waste (in tonnes) —RIBREEARE (LA AMEET) 2.3 3.1
Total GHG emissions (in tonnes) B ERED S (LAANEST) 24.8 28.0
Average number of employees FHEEHE 22 22
GHG emissions per average employee BEAYREREBIRE

(in tonnes) (LARmEE) 1.13 127
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

Waste Management

The Group’s operations do not produce any hazardous waste, which
includes but not limited to chemical wastes, clinical wastes and hazardous
chemicals. The non-hazardous waste produced by the Group was mainly
paper waste. Measures for reducing and recycling the waste were put
in place. We encourage double-sided printing, as well as reuse of single
side printed paper. A recycling company was engaged to collect and
recycle our paper waste regularly. In FY2020, approximately 51% of our
paper waste was recycled (FY2019: 51%). To further reduce the Group's
nonhazardous waste, we have also purchased some electronic tablets so as
to facilitate usage of electronic document and promote paperless office.

Non-hazardous waste (in kg) B|EREY (LA 5D
Paper waste (in kg) BE4E (BA D FT3Et)
Average number of employees FHEEHE

Paper waste per average employee (in kg)

Use of Resources

The Group is committed to upholding high environmental standards in
order to promote environmental friendliness. As a provider of money
lending services, the Group strives to minimise environmental impact
by reducing energy and paper consumption and encouraging recycle of
office supplies and other materials.

Energy Consumption

The electricity consumed by the Group’s head office was the largest
contributor to the greenhouse gas footprint. To reduce the Group's
carbon and energy footprints, the Group has posted some energy
conservation reminders in place. Computers and office lights are switched
off during non-business hours to minimise light pollution and reduce
energy consumption. The total electricity consumption decreased by
approximately 9% in FY2020 when compared to FY2019
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R - ERERHRS (B)

Electricity consumption (in kWh)

Average number of employees FHEESHE
Electricity consumption per average
employee (in kWh)

Paper Usage

Efficiency in usage of paper has been promoted and communicated to our
employees. Tablets were provided to employees to encourage reduction
of usage of paper. The single-sided printings were collected for reuse.
Paper usage decreased by approximately 27% when compared with last
year.

Paper usage (in kg) BEEADFE)

FHEEHE

Average number of employees

Paper usage per average employee (in kg)

Water Consumption and Packaging Materials

As the Group's operations mainly focus on providing financial services to
customers, no water consumption or packaging material consumption can
be identified as material issue relevant to the Group's operations.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of our business, the Group does not have any direct
and significant impact on the environment and natural resources in the
course of its operations. By taking the above-mentioned green initiatives,
the Group is committed to doing our part to mitigate our environmental
impact and acting in a manner that is both environmentally and socially
responsible.

HEEB(UTRER)

EBEAGBEE(URAFED)

BEASEEE (LT REG)

FY2020 FY2019
i —T-NF
B E MERFE
28,514 31,495
22 22

1,296 1,432
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FY2020 FY2019
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MBFEE MBFERE

954 1,305
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With the Group's efforts in minimising its impacts on the environment, the
Group has successfully achieved the following over the past year:

Results

MR

Aspects
FHE

GHG emissions

Rk - ERERHRS (B)

AEBBZRLVREZEMTHNE N - £F
RIRIBE—FREBATRR

Reduced total GHG emissions by approximately 11%

BEREELNX FOREREBHNATERERMDL11%

Waste production

PR BGE [l 42 #7519 HY BE 4

Energy consumption
BEIRHFE B IR EFE IR A 49%
Paper usage

F#& 1 4 AR EIR D 4927%

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group regards employees as one of the most valuable assets of
the Group and regards the personal development of its employees as
highly important. The Group has a set of HR management policies and
procedures in place to set out the Group's standard of staff recruitment,
remuneration, work periods, rest periods as well as termination of
employment and compensation matters. The Group strictly complies
with the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and other relevant laws and regulations which cover
all employment protection (including the provision of a safe working
environment and protection of employees from occupational hazards) and
benefits.

Recycled approximately 51% of our paper waste

Reduced energy consumption by approximately 9%

Reduced total paper usage by approximately 27%

ABEIR
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Rk - HERER®RE (E)

Employment

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed 22 full-time employees
(2019: 22) which are all located in Hong Kong. The Group has a diverse
workforce in terms of gender and age, generating creative opinions and
different level of capabilities. The following table sets forth the number
and breakdown of our full-time employees as at 31 December 2020:

Age 30

or below

=TEIAT

Male 2
XL

Female 1
el

Total 3
st

Remunerations of the employees of the Group are determined with
reference to the prevailing market standard as well as the competency,
qualifications and experience of individual employees. Discretionary
bonuses based on financial results of the Group as well as individual
performance will be paid to the employees as recognition of their
contribution to the Group annually. The Group regularly reviews the
remuneration package and promotion opportunities of employees and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard in order
to retain talents. To increase the employees’ sense of belonging, the Group
also offer various welfare incentives to employees, including insurance
schemes, over-time allowance, various paid leaves and holiday gifts.

The Group adopts equal employment opportunity policies and treats
all the employees equally, and their employment, remuneration and
promotion will not be affected by their social identities such as ethnicity,
race, nationality, gender, religion, age, sexual orientation, political faction
and marital status.

=3

RIB-EF+-A=+—8 A&£EER2
ZEBEB(ZZ—IE %) BEHRE
NES - AEBEAETRMRIRFIRNZ TR
TEE SEIRHEEHEAIENRRE  WAH
TRRBEMRESN - TREBIHNRMR-_ZZ_ZF
T A=+—BH02REEEE KB :

Age 31
to 40 Above 40 Total
=t+t—ZW+5 H+aE A £ st
4 4 10
6 5 12
10 9 22
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Health and Safety

The Group is committed to providing a safe and healthy working
environment to its employees, and encourages them to achieve a balance
between work and a healthy life. Air purifiers are placed in the workplace
to improve air circulation. We take a systematic approach to safeguard the
health and safety of our employee by reducing the likelihood of safety risks
occurrence in the office so we aim at training employee’s responsiveness
to emergencies. During FY2020, there was no instance of injury reported
within our Group. The Group provides medical insurance for employees
and the coverage of insurance includes hospital and surgical service,
dental services and out-patient fees. The Group complies with the relevant
occupational health and safety laws and regulations.

In light of the outbreak of COVID-19 since early 2020, the Group has
implemented timely precautionary measures to safeguard the health
of its employees. The Group has actively sourced surgical masks and
other prevention materials for distributing to employees and has also
provided subsidies to employees to purchase epidemic prevention
materials. Employees are required to wear a mask as far as feasible and
keep appropriate social distance with others when in common facilities
of the workplace. The Group has also implemented certain contingency
measures during the multiple waves of infections, including flexible
working hours, working from home and split team arrangements.

In addition, preventive measures have also been taken at the Group’s
office building by the property management company, including installing
infrared temperature sensors at the entrance of the lobby to prevent
possible infected person entering the office building. The Group has
also enhanced the cleaning of the workplace where frequently touched
surfaces were cleaned and disinfected regularly, in order to maintain a
clean working environment.

Training and Development
The Group encourages employees to participate in on-the-job training and
continuing education to create opportunities for career development.

In order to help employees acclimatise to the volatile business
environment, the Group provides continuous updates in relation to
market and industry trends as well as updates on relevant regulations
to its employees. In addition, the Group also encourages continuous
personal development of its employees by implementing an educational
reimbursement program.

The Group also invites directors and senior management to attend
training in relation to updates on the Listing Rules, corporate governance,
relevant laws and regulations so as to maintain sustainable professional
development and refresh their knowledge.
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R - ERERHRS (B)

Labour Standards

The Group is committed to comply, with the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and associated guidelines. Every
act of employment is subject to a stringent internal review process
that involves a well-defined monitoring procedure designed to verify a
candidate’s personal information in order to avoid misrepresentation and
any form of child and forced labour. During FY2020, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with the Employment Ordinance
(Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and other laws and regulations
relating to employment and labour practices.

OPERATING PRACTICES

Customer Care

There is no major procurement involved in our business, so in the supply
chain management aspect, we will focus on customer relationship
management instead. Customer care is one of the core values of the
Group. The Group is committed to provide customers with thoughtful and
consistently high standard of service and strive to treat customers fairly
at all stages of its business relationship. With a “Clients First” principal,
the Group emphasises a one-on-one personal approach to service and
provides a variety of highly flexible loan solutions to its customers.

Front-line employees are well-trained with adequate and update
knowledge on relevant regulations to ensure the services provided are
complied with all relevant regulations. The Group also acknowledges the
increasing use of social media and electronic applications, and strives
to enhance its service delivery through the development of mobile
applications and incorporating various value-added features to improve
customer experience. Complaint system has been set up for customers to
address comments and complaints. Our service pledge is to follow up and
resolve complaints in a responsive manner.

Customer education is also another topic that we have been working
on as we value the well-being of our customers and society. The Group
communicates the latest market information to customers through its
social media channels, such as news relating to fraud cases commenced by
illegal financial intermediates and tips for prevention from being cheated,
in order to increase customer's awareness.
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Product Responsibility and Customer Privacy

The Group values the trust of its customers and as a provider of money
lending services, the Group has access to significant personal data of its
customers and therefore ensuring the privacy of customer information is
one of the issues the Group cares about the most.

The Group is committed to the full implementation and has complied with
the Six Data Protection Principles and the requirements of the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486, Laws of Hong Kong) (the "PDPQ").
The Group has formulated a set of privacy principles regarding collection,
retention, use, security, openness and accessibility of personal information
to ensure customer information received is only for its intended purpose
and to prevent information leakage, such as:

requiring employees not to retain or disclose any confidential
information about the Group’s business activities and other sensitive
confidential data to any third parties;

requiring customers to acknowledge their rights under the PDPO,
the purpose of collecting their personal data upon completion and
signing of the application forms;

ensuring that confidential personal data is not obtained through
telephone conversations; and

ensuring that customer files are kept in a locked cabinet.

Employees are also invited and encouraged to attend the training courses
organised by the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data to increase
awareness and understanding of the PDPO. The Group will continue to
monitor, review and, when necessary, update its privacy principles and
policies to ensure they are in compliance with the PDPO.

The Group also understands that our computer systems may be prone to
hackers” attacks due to increasing hacker activities, therefore, the Group
regularly conducts IT control reviews to update the security system.

Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements and during the Reporting Period, the Group has complied, to
the best of its knowledge, with applicable laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the business of the Group. In particular, as a money
lenders license holder, the Money Lenders Ordinance ("MLQO") constitutes a
significant influence to the Group’s money lending business.

The credit approval policy and process adopted by the Group has been
designed to ensure that the Group's business operates in accordance with
the MLO. The Group also regularly monitors, reviews and, when necessary,
updates the existing policy to ensure the money lending business is strictly
in compliance with the MLO.
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Anti-corruption and Anti-money Laundering

In order to uphold the highest ethical standards, all management and staff
of the Group are required to strictly follow the Group’s Code of Conduct
and to sign acknowledgements that they understand and agree to the
Code of Conduct adopted by the Group. With the purpose of preventing
potential bribery, extortion and fraud, the Group's Code of Conduct clearly
states that:

Employees shall not accept gifts or other benefits that are beyond
common business hospitality, or the head of department or the chief
executive shall be consulted.

Under no circumstances should an employee offer bribes to any
person or company for the purpose of obtaining or retaining
business.

Employees should always avoid any situation involving a conflict,
or that could be perceived by others as a conflict, between
their personal interests, or those of their close relatives, and the
performance of their official duties.

If a potential conflict exists, employees should make prompt and full
disclosure to the management.

To prevent and detect money laundering and terrorist financing, the
Group follows the “Guideline on Compliance of Anti-Money Laundering
and Counter-Terrorist Financing Requirements for Licensed Money
Lenders” issued by the Companies Registry and has incorporated policies
and procedures in our operation and credit guidelines and policies, which
include procedures for customer due diligence, reporting of suspicious
transactions, record-keeping, and staff training. The Group'’s policies and
procedures in respect of prevention and detection of money laundering
and terrorist financing activities include, but are not limited to, the
following:

Check loan applicants against the sanctioned countries, firms, entities
and individuals from database provided by professional compliance
firm.

Conduct customer due diligence based on result of risk assessment
on each potential customer.
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Carry out know-your-client procedures by verifying the applicant’s
identity using reliable and independent source documents.

All loan repayments from customers are made by cheque, bank
transfer or autopay with their own bank accounts.

The Group will report any suspicious transactions to the Joint
Financial Intelligence Unit using the standard form or the e-channel
"STREAMS".

The Group maintains all essential information of our customers, with
the PDPO.

The Group encourages and supports its employees to maximise
their potential and to seek practical and professional training,
when available, on matters related and relevant to their roles and
responsibilities, the money lending business and current legislation
and practices.

During FY2020, the Group did not identify any non-compliance related to
anti-corruption and anti-money laundering.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Group is committed to honoring its corporate social responsibility for
the benefit of the society by participating in a variety of charitable events
and cultivating the concept of corporate social responsibility throughout
the organisation. The Group has been awarded the “Caring Company
Award” for ten consecutive years by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service in recognition of our commitment in serving the community and
caring for our employees. The Group participates in a variety of charitable
events every year and the followings summarised the Group's contribution
during the year:

Donate money and epidemic prevention materials to the Urban
Peacemaker Evangelist Fellowship.

Made donations to support Médecins Sans Frontiéres, Orbis, World
Vision, Po Leung Kuk, Children’s Cancer Foundation and The Red
Cross Hong Kong.
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) presents their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 72.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK6.4 cents per
ordinary share, totalling HK$25,600,000 payable to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on Thursday, 10
June 2021. The proposed final dividend will be paid on or about Friday, 25
June 2021 following approval at the forthcoming AGM of the Company.

SPECIAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a special dividend of HK3.2 cents
per ordinary share, totalling HK$12,800,000 payable to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Thursday, 10 June 2021. The proposed special dividend will be paid on or
about Friday, 25 June 2021 following approval at the forthcoming AGM of
the Company.

No arrangement under which a shareholder has waived or agreed to waive
any dividends was made by the Company.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$73,000 (2019: HK$73,800).
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2020 available
for distribution to Shareholders amounted to HK$570,528,000 (2019:
HK$571,784,000).

SHARE CAPITAL AND DEBENTURES

No new shares or debentures were issued by the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Details of the share capital of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAXATION RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on page 152 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither our Company nor any of our subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of our Company’s listed securities during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted and
approved pursuant to a written resolution of the sole Shareholder passed
on 22 November 2014 and its refreshment of the scheme mandate limit
was approved at an extraordinary general meeting held on 11 November
2015. The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

BREEESEEAERLT 2020 FR

Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHRE(E)

A 73 T fe

ARAR—_E-ZEF+-_A=+—HuEkEE
IR EYA] DR 5 /5570,528,0008 L ( — 2 — N,
£ 1 571,784,000 7T ) °

BRA R E R

BE-_T-_ZEHF+_A=+—BIFERNELR
A EB TR D SR EHERT ©

ARARARBET_BF+-A=+—A
I 2 SE R A GHERRBR RA GRS
K2 -

BrRBERE
ARTMEHERERAERS RN RS
BAA R AR IR R RIB2 B & H R
ME LB EERE -

REERRER

AN B AR AR SR B B T 2 A (A B
BREAKEE -

hEMBEHRE
AEEBEAENRFENEEUREERS
ERE RN AFRE 1528 -

BE - HEIWEEAQAT LHES

ARR AR BHEI B R R F AR E
BE  HEXBLREAARAN LEHES

RS E

ARBRE-F-—NF+—A-+_HE—K
R B O F DR 3 5 IR A S L R A A 8
([BREatE ) Bt SIREREER-F
—AF+—AT—BRBTHRRFEHIAE L
EHLEEHT o BAERT B IRSIRIE LT AR A
FTEENEERE

55



Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHRE(E)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and
to recognise and acknowledge the contributions which the Eligible
Participants (defined in paragraph below) have made or may make to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants
with the opportunity to own a personal stake in the Company with a view
to motivating the Eligible Participants and/or attracting and retaining or
otherwise maintaining on-going relationship with the Eligible Participants
whose contributions are, will be or are likely to be beneficial to the long
term growth of the Group.

The Directors (which include a duly authorised committee thereof) may, at
its absolute discretion, invite any person belonging to any of the following
classes of participants (“Eligible Participants”), to take up options (the
"Options”) to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”):

() any Director (whether executive or non-executive or independent
non-executive), employee (whether full-time or part-time), officer,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or any entity in which the Company or any
subsidiary holds any interest (“Invested Entity”);

(i) any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
any Director (whether executive or non-executive or independent
non-executive), employee (whether full time or part time), officer,
consultant, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(i) any corporation wholly-owned by any person mentioned in clause (i)
above.

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the maximum number of
Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options available to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed the Scheme
Mandate Limit (i.e. 10% of the Shares in issue as at 11 November 2015
being the date of approval of the refreshed limit by the Shareholders). The
Company had 400,000,000 Shares in issue as at 11 November 2015, the
refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit allows the Company to issue under the
Share Option Scheme a maximum of 40,000,000 Shares, representing 10%
of the issued shares as at the date of this annual report.

Notwithstanding the above, the total number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares
in issue from time to time.
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The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all Options granted to an Eligible Participant (including exercised and
outstanding Options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue from time to time, unless approved by the Shareholders in
general meeting.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and notified
by the board of directors to each grantee, which period may commence
on a day after the date upon which the offer for the grant of options is
made but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of
grant of the option. No further options may be granted more than 10 years
after 22 November 2014.

The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from 22 November 2014, the date on which the Share Option Scheme was
adopted.

The subscription price per share under the Share Option Scheme (the
"Subscription Price”) shall be a price determined by the Directors, but shall
not be less than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which must be a
Business Day;

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet for the five Business Days
immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a share.

For the purpose of calculating the Subscription Price, where the Company
has been listed for less than five Business Days, the new issue price shall
be used as the closing price for any Business Day falling within the period
before listing.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.0 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
an option within 21 days from the date of the offer of grant of the option.

No share options under the Share Option Scheme were granted, exercised,
lapsed or cancelled during the year.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Ms. Wang Yao (Chairman and Chief Executive)
Ms. Jin Xiaogin

Ms. Yip Lee Ying (appointed on 28 August 2020)

Mr. Ng Yiu Lun (resigned on 28 August 2020)

Independent non-executive Directors:
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen

Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick

Mr. Tang, Warren Louis

Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles, Ms. Yip Lee Ying, being appointed
as executive Director by the Board on 28 August 2020, will hold office
until the next general meeting and, being eligible, will offer herself for re-
election.

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles, Ms. Jin Xiaogin and Mr. Man Yiu
Kwong, Nick shall retire from office by rotation at the next annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of their independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTER OF
APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company regarding her appointment as executive Director for a term
of three years and shall continue thereafter unless terminated by not less
than six months written notice or otherwise in accordance with the service
agreement.

None of the executive Directors has or is proposed to have a service
contract that is not determinable by the Company within one year without
the payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

According to the terms of the service agreements entered into between
the Company and the executive Directors, each of the executive Directors
will receive a monthly salary which is subject to annual review by the Board
and the Remuneration Committee. Each of the executive Directors is also
entitled to a discretionary performance bonus as may be determined by
the Board upon the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee.
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The emoluments of Directors have been determined with reference
to the skills, knowledge, involvement in the Company'’s affairs and the
performance of each Director, and to the profitability of the Company and
prevailing market conditions during the year.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors, Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen,
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis and Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick has signed a letter
of appointment with the Company and were appointed for a three-year
term unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the relevant letter of
employment.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in the related party transactions as disclosed in Note
28 of the consolidated financial statements, no other transactions,
arrangements and contracts of significance to which the Company’s
subsidiaries or its parent company was a party and in which a Director and
a Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had interests in
businesses, which compete or are likely to compete either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries as
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Each of Blossom Spring Global Limited (“Blossom Spring”) and Ms. Jin
Xiaogin (“Ms. Jin") has provided annual confirmations in respect of the
compliance with non-competition undertaking (the “Undertaking”) given
by them.

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
compliance by each of Blossom Spring and Ms. Jin with the Undertaking
during the year ended 31 December 2020. The independent nonexecutive
Directors have confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there is no
breach by any of Blossom Spring and Ms. Jin of the Undertaking given by
them.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 17 to 19 to this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR
ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of each Director
and chief executive in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO were as follows:

Interest in the Company

Nature of

Name of Director interest

Capacity

EEpR 5% BEME

Ms. Jin Interest in a controlled corporation® Long position
Ea REEEER R
Note:

(1) Blossom Spring is the registered and beneficial owner of these shares. The entire issued
share capital of Blossom Spring is held by Ms. Jin. Therefore, Ms. Jin is deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by Blossom Spring for the purposes of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year did the Directors or
chief executive of the Company (including their spouse and children under
18 years of age) have any interest in, or had been granted or exercised, any
rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or debentures, if applicable) of
the Company, and its other associated corporations which required to be
disclosed pursuant to the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the Share Option Scheme of the Company as set out in this annual
report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company had an interest or a short position in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO:

Nature of

Name of Director interest

Capacity

EEnA 514 BEME

Blossom Spring™ Beneficial owner Long position
EREAA 1)
Mr. Wong Tai Wai®@ Interest of spouse Long position
TREEED i B e )
Notes:

(1) The entire issued share capital of Blossom Spring is held by Ms. Jin. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Jin is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by Blossom Spring.

(2) Mr. Wong Tai Wai is the spouse of Ms. Jin. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wong Tai Wai is
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares in which Ms. Jin is deemed to be
interested.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2020, there was no other
person so far known to the Directors or chief executives of the Company,
other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company as having
an interest or a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for employment contracts, no contracts concerning the management
and administrative of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group's top five customers
accounted for approximately 19.4% of total revenue and the Group's single
largest customer accounted for approximately 6.7% of total revenue.

All the Group's top five customers were independent third parties. To the
best of their knowledge, information and belief, none of the Group, its
Directors, members of senior management, and their respective associates
and Shareholders who own more than 5% of the issued shares, had any
interest in or financial or business relationship with any of the Group's top
five customers during the year.

The Group had no major supplier due to the nature of principle activities of
the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020 as disclosed in Note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted fully exempted connected transactions
under the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER'S INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Group's
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Appropriate Directors’ liability insurance has been arranged to indemnify
the Directors for liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The coverage
and the sum insured under the policy are reviewed annually. Further, the
Company'’s Articles of Association provide that Directors are entitled to be
indemnified out of the Company’s assets against claims from third parties
in respect of certain liabilities.

The Company has taken out and maintained appropriate insurance cover
in respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is
sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company's issued shares as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report (being 15
April 2021).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Additional information of business review is set out on pages 7 to 16 under
the section “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report,
which forms part of this directors’ report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to strive for environmental sustainability, and
minimising its environmental impact from operations.

Further information on the Group's environmental issues are detailed in
the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 42 to 53 to
this annual report.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group has complied
in material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the financial year ended 31 December 2020
and up to the date of this annual report, there was no other significant or
important event that affects the business of the Group.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.
A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Wang Yao

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
GLOBAL INTERNATIONAL CREDIT GROUP LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Global International Credit Group
Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
72 to 151, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit relates to impairment assessment
of loans and interest receivables.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

RAREEE

BN ETNNEEFARETSE

Impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables
Refer to 4.1(a) (critical estimates, judgements and ~ We assessed management’s assessment of provision for impairment

errors), Note 18 (loans receivable) and Note 19
(interest receivables) to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s net loans
and interest receivables amounted to HK$745.3
million and HK$7.3 million, respectively. Provision
for impairment assessments of loans and interest
receivables under the expected credit loss ("ECL")
model amounted to HK$3.4 million and HK$0.1
million, respectively.

Management assessed the provision for impairment
of loans and interest receivables based on the
estimation of ECL under a “three-stage” model.
In developing the loss allowance of loans and
interest receivables, management use judgement
in making the assumptions about the probability
of default and loss given default with reference to
the historical delinquency ratio of loans portfolio,
collateral values and current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors.

We focused on this area because the carrying value
of loans and interest receivables is significant to

of loans and interest receivables by performing the following
procedures:

understood, evaluated and validated the control over
impairment assessment of loans and interest receivables, which
related to management’s identification of events that triggered
the significant increase in credit risk of loans and interest
receivables and events of default;

carried out procedures, on a sample basis, to test the existence
and accuracy of the aging of loans and interest receivables as at
the reporting date;

checked the valuation methodology and approach adopted by
management in the ECL assessment;

evaluated the appropriateness of the key assumptions, such as
delinquency ratio and collateral values used in assessing the ECL
based on the historical data as well as market economic data; and

re-performed management’s calculation of loss allowance under
ECL model which grouped together all the receivables with
similar risk characteristics and based on the probability of default,
exposure at default and loss given default.

the consolidated financial statements and the Based on the procedures described above, we found management's
management’s impairment assessment of loans and  judgements and estimates applied in the impairment assessment of
interest receivables require the use of significant loans and interest receivables were supportable by available evidence.

judgements and estimates.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheung Kin Bong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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For the year ended 31 December2020 HZ—ZE-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

Year ended 31 December
BE+=-HA=1t—HILLEE

2020 2019

—ECEF —T—-hF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

i FET FHET

Revenue N 103,277 121,737

Otherincome Hip g A 1,331 80

Administrative expenses THHX (24,449) (30,638)
Reversal of impairment losses/ B EUREEE,CREEE)

(impairment losses) — net - 1,523 (1,425)
Finance costs B 78 R 2R (5,092) (15,035)
Profit before income tax MR SB AR 76,590 74,719
Income tax expense FERFHEX (12,425) (12,219)
Profit and total comprehensive AATEEAEBEER

income for the year attributable to BRREEWRARE

owners of the Company 64,165 62,500
Earnings per share attributable to AATHEEANELEERER

owners of the Company
— Basic and diluted —HARNEE

(expressed in HK cents per share) (ABFREAENLES) 16.0 15.6

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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As at 31 December 2020 R=ZE=_FF+_-_A=+—H

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H

2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
=3 FET TET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MR 14 270 686
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15(a) 1,362 5,388
Loans receivable FEE = 18 357,652 273,062
Deferred income tax assets EEFSHEE 22 676 861
Deposits b 20 - 1,480
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 359,960 281,477
Current assets REEE
Loans receivable FEWE X 18 384,237 670,672
Interest receivables JE I & 19 7,143 6,499
Prepayments, deposits and other TERTRRIE ~ R R E MR
receivables I8 20 7,315 4,615
Pledged deposit EHEATFR 21(b) 7,434 1,713
Cash and cash equivalents e NRESEEY 21(a) 132,835 30,201
Total current assets RBEEHAE 538,964 713,700
Total assets EEHE 898,924 995,177
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners KAREE AEEER
of the Company
Share capital A% A 26 4,000 4,000
Reserves s 27 837,341 782,376
Total equity A 841,341 786,376
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BHEFBIRR R ()

As at 31 December 2020 R=ZE=-FF+_-A=+—H

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF —T—hF
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
HiaE FET FAT
LIABILITIES a&
Non-current liability FREEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 15(a) - 1,437
Total non-current liability FREBEBHERE - 1,437
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FERT B A R B FE T 3R IR 23 3,277 5,331
Tax payable T A I8 4,169 21,076
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMBE R 24 48,700 176,891
Lease liabilities HEEE 15(a) 1,437 4,066
Total current liabilities REEEARH 57,583 207,364
Total liabilities BE8H 57,583 208,801
Total equity and liabilities ERREEREE 898,924 995,177

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

LAt A GFEA AR S A e B BE P B R — GBI EE o

The financial statement on pages 72 to 151 were approved for issue by the BN E72E 151 BN A MM BREAChESS
Board of Directors on 30 March 2021 and were signed on its behalf. R-E-—F=ZA=+H#EFZE  YHUT

=

BEERREE -

Ms. Wang Yao TE &+
Director £%

Ms. Yip Lee Ying EF| B 2+
Director £%F
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B ERBEX

For the year ended 31 December2020 HZ T -_TF+-_A=+—HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KAREE AR
Share Share Capital Retained

capital premium reserve earnings Total

R Ko aE ERGE REEAF st

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

i TR TR THT THT TAT

Balance at 1 January 2019 R-B-hE-A-BHE&R 4,000 122,176 390,621 228679 745476
Total comprehensive EEGARALE

income for the year - - - 62,500 62,500

Transactions with owners BEEANRS
Final dividend relating to 2018 BB \EMRHRE 13 - - - (12,000) (12,000)
Interim dividend relating t0 2019 BBE_Z—LEMNTHREE 13 - - - (9,600) (9,600)

Total transactions with owners, SEEANKZHEE
recognised directly in equity ~ EIERERER - - - (21,600) (21,600

Balance at 31 December 2019  RA-ZE-AE

TZR=tT-HMEH 4,000 122,176 390,621 269,579 786,376
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-B-BE-A—-ANESR 4,000 122,176 390,621 269,579 786,376
Total comprehensive EEGARALE
income for the year - - - 64,165 64,165
Transactions with owners REFANR S
Final dividend relating to 2019 BH_T-NERRERE 13 - - - (9,200) (9,200)

Total transactions with owners, BB AT HE%EE -
recognised directly in equity ~ EIERERER - - - (9,200) (9,200)

Balance at 31 December 2020 R-ZE_E&
+-A=t-BHES 4,000 122,176 390,621 324,544 841,341

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in it & Of 2 B B 5% fE BABERT M 3E — GBI o
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

75



Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHRERER

For the year ended 31 December2020 HZ—ZE-_ZTF+-A=+—HLFE

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations

Proceeds from disposal of
repossessed assets

Loan interest received

Interest paid

Hong Kong profits tax paid, net

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and
equipment

Bank interest received

Net cash generated from
investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings
Repayment of bank and other borrowings

Proceeds from loans from a related
company

Repayment of loans from a related
company

Lease payments

(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank
deposits

Dividend paid to the equity holders

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end
of the year

RETHRENE
REXBMELRS

H & AR I E & BE P S 5R0R
EE R S

ERFE
ENEBNETFE

SR BT E T % R
REZHALHE
BEML - e RRE
BRI

BRERSMELRS TR

MEZHRERE

RIT R EAME R ATE R
EIERIT M EADER

— IR R BB RS F0R

Lileali/NCIE= BN

HEMK
BEHERRITERCGE M),

ENEREDRFEARE

fEE—

BMERSTAERSFE

RBeMREEHEY
20,/ Cid ) #8

FRE MRS EEY

FRREMREEEY

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—-BHLEE

2020 2019
—EZH —T-NF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 T T
25(a) 181,408 19,408
- 29,094

102,615 123,045
(4,877) (14,752)

(29,147) -

249,999 156,795
(8) (19)

36 30

28 61

48,700 143,030
(176,891) (263,043)

- 50,000
- (100,000)
(4,281) (2,832)

(5,721) 6,977
(9,200) (21,600)
(147,393) (187,468)
102,634 (30,612)

30,201 60,813

132,835 30,201

LA HRERERERBEMME—HRE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Global International Credit Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 20 January 2014 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised), of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office is P.O. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the money lending business of providing property
mortgage loans and personal loans in Hong Kong.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) regard Blossom Spring
Global Limited ("Blossom Spring”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), as the ultimate holding company of the
Company.

The Company has its listing on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars ("HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of
Directors for issue on 30 March 2021.

B OB ISR R

—REH

BRRGEEEEEGRAB(ARA DR -E
—MFE—-A-+HIRBERSHSEEFEL
BAREPEN—NAR—FFE=ZFEH - &
ReEMETT)EMERBEMM I RER
RBERRDF - RARIEMPER IS
P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands °

ART AN BL A AEE)EBRE
BB R O I R AL A BEARAO
K -

KRAFEIEE([EE]) 2 Blossom Spring
Global Limited ([ Blossom Springl) » — 7
EEREABES((REEZHSE]) M
AT - BARRRGREIERAT

ARTEESBHAZHHERAT L -

BRBAEAEIN  EAHTBRERAT
B ([ FABT]) R - WEAFIBERE
R-B-_—F=A=t+HEEESHET
% o
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B O H AR M (&)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are
for the Group consisting of Global International Credit Group Limited
and its subsidiaries.

2

EXRSHHEREE

ZIKW?%Lﬁ%ﬁ@é&%é{ﬁﬁﬂ%iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁé
MZEIBEARRBE AHEASN -
HZEBRRIRER i&i&ffﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁﬁ ° B1 %5
BERIDRAKE(ARREERBEARA
CIE =N OE

2.1 Basis of preparation MBE%E
(i) Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO (l) BTFEBUBHEEREELR
=ik 3]

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

(ii) Historical cost convention
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared on a historical cost basis.

(iii) Relevant amendments to existing standards adopted
by the Group
The Group has applied the following amendments to
standards for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing 1 January 2020:

Definition of a Business — amendments to HKFRS 3

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

AEBZAHMBHRRDIRER
BB EER ([ EEMBRE
Q) REFEBRB G (F622
B)MMRERES o

(ii) L%
REBZEHMERERECILESL
AN B LR R o

(i) F R R 5B 2E R HIRE B 15
i
AEBREE T -_FTF—H—
AFENFEREHEERER
THEERHERT A -

EBOTER - BAUBR
FEAFEIFUEFTA)

FIREERS - BB
MEERF - BEEET
HERIFE 395 R BB B 15 W
H AR E 75 (BETA)

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial LEIT 2V BHRERSIE
Reporting S

The Group also elected to adopt the following amendment
early:

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2018 - 2020 Cycle

REETVE IR R ERAATERT
7N

& Hﬁﬁﬁiﬁ ER - F
—NFE-_ZT_ZTFHEH
ZEEE
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B ORISR M ()

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BAEHBEME(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.1 WEEX(E)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii) Relevant amendments to existing standards adopted
by the Group (Continued)
The amendments listed above did not have any impact
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.

(iv) New and amended standards and interpretations not
yet adopted
Certain new and amended accounting standards
and interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for 31 December 2020 reporting periods and
have not been early adopted by the Group. These new and
amended standards and interpretations are not expected
to have a material impact on the entity in the current
or future reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group (refer to note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

(iii) 5K BERA 89 5B 2R HIRE B 15
7 (%)
BRSNS R] A B 1 HAR AT
RN EBRYEEIMAPZE BB
AT EHERMIARPBRELE

=4
-2

(iv) [ RERABGFET RASIETEAI R
7rE
ANEEBHARRFRRL IR -F
CEBE+ZA=+—HWELM
BHEITHE AhE T &
(EETE R MR - ZEHR]
MR R RIS E
RERTS AR REPHEEE R
HARRAKNRGERENY
@,

2.2 FERBIRERETHE

ol

RIENCIEERN SE TSP o230y
FER(BEGEBILER) - A5EY
ERAEE  REARERZ2EZ
ERMNZEMESHERZAHIE
El% - WEESER RIS EERIZHH
BN E Lo - K8 QB
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B REEGRRILEZBERLEA
PEARR ©
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

2.5

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

equity interests issued by the Group

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive
Directors of the entities now comprising the Group that makes
strategic decisions.

2 BAEHBERBMEE)

2.3

2.4

2.5
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HKS"), which is Global International Credit Group
Limited's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. They are deferred
in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and
qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable to
part of the net investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, within finance costs.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on non-monetary such as derivative financial
instrument are recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of the fair value gain or
loss.

B ORISR M ()

2 BAEHBERBMEE)

2.6 5p
(i)

(ii)
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

- Furniture, fixtures and 4-5years
equipment

— Leasehold improvements Shorter of remaining lease

terms or useful lives

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount. These are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

2 BAEHBERBMEE)
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflow which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

2.9 Investments and other financial assets

(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income (“OCl")
or through profit or loss); and

those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account
for the equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI").

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Gt Bt 5 kB (4R

2 BAEHBERBMEE)

2.8

2.9

FEMEERE
EESEUHRESBEREHBEREER
HEEA AW B - BERETR
BAHE - REBBLREERTDERL
HAE 2B EZRER - AlEd
HEAEENTERLERANERE
TEF@%ZEPF%_% At EERE
- NG R {E B AT B ER 2
(L%ﬁiﬁ/\\ LB E EEMARI(R
SEABM)ZEERAN) HREKF
S EEMR - Fﬂﬁﬁ-ﬁ%ﬁl\’E?ﬁ%ﬂ
BERNFEREETSMERARME
A AREBLRVEETTIRET ©

RERHEMSHEE

(l) /‘\ﬁ
AEBELTHEERIBLS
MEENE :

BN FEFE(Tims
AE iR E WS ((ﬁﬁﬂi
MmE )it AIEs) ¢

SR SRR E -

DEERR AR ERETMEEN
EBEARBRERENANF
i o

%E@ﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬁ?ﬁi L4
=@ R EEE N B RS 2K
@B o LA SEFHER BRBRA
TRAKREMS  BEORNAEKH
EBRVAFER R E L T A HE
B BRARE AR A FER
ARAfERE Wast & (R AFE
APAR AR A U E AR

AEBEREER
RIBIRA R

EEZEEEN
H—réﬂéﬁ DEEBE

83



Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B O H AR M (&)

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
(iii) Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within other gains/(losses) in the
period in which it arises.

The Group's financial assets held during the year are all
debt instruments, including cash and cash equivalents,
pledge deposits, loans receivable, interest receivables,
deposit and other receivables which are all being classified
as to be measured at amortised cost.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
(iii) Measurement (Continued)

(iv)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCl, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement of
profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the ECL
associated with its debt instruments carried at amortised
cost.

The Group recognises a loss allowance for such losses at
each reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflect:

An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined by evaluating a range of possible
outcome.

Reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)
(iv) Impairment (Continued)
Note 3.1(b) provides more detail of how the expected
credit loss allowance is measured.

Loans receivable and interest receivables of the Group are
classified as debt investments carried at amortised cost
and are subject to the ECL model.

While cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposit and
deposits and other receivables are also subject to the
impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

2.10 Derivative financial instrument
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair value.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
where Global International Credit Group Limited currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Global International
Credit Group Limited has also entered into arrangement that
do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the
related amount to be set off in certain circumstances, such as
bankruptcy or the terminator of a contract.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.12 Loans and interest receivables

Loans and interest receivables are property mortgage loans
and personal loans granted to customers in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of loans and interest receivables are
expected in one year or less, they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Loans and interest receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. The
gross carrying amount is written off (either partially or in full) to
the extent that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written-off are
recognised in “reversal of impairment losses/(impairment
losses) — net” in profit or loss.

2.13 Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand
and deposits held at call with banks.

2.15 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.16 Other payables

Other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period.
They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEAEHBEME(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Borrowings 217 fBR

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete the asset for its intended use or sales.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sales.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable or refundable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation and considers whether it
is probable that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either based on
the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on
which method provides a better prediction of the resolution of
the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(i) Investment allowances and similar tax incentives
Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim
special tax deductions for investments in qualifying
assets or in relation to qualifying expenditure. The Group
accounts for such allowances as tax credits, which means
that the allowance reduces income tax payable and
current tax expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised for
unclaimed tax credits that are carried forward as deferred
tax assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group has a defined contribution plan for its
employees. The Group pays contributions to trustee-
administered pension funds on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employment costs when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses, based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company’s shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is a past
practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period. Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEAEHBEME(E)
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Provisions 221 B &

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
management'’s best estimate of expenditures required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The
discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.22 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their
fair value less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the related
outstanding loans on the date of repossession, and the related
loans and advances together with the related impairment
allowances are derecognised from the consolidated statement
of financial position. Subsequently, repossessed assets are
measured at cost less impairment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of services in the ordinary course of the

Group's activities.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been
met for each of the Group's activities as described below.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised and accrued using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the
Group reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loan and receivables are recognised using the original

effective interest rate.

2.24 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is

available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-
lease components and instead accounts for these as a single

lease component.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.24 Leases (Continued)
Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party

financing was received; and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,

currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the

right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on

the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the

following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

any lease payments made at or before the commencement

date less any lease incentives received;
any initial direct costs; and

restoration costs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.24 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s
useful life. While the Group revalues its land and buildings that
are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by the
Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on
a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.

2.25 Dividend distribution

Provisions is made for the amount of any dividend declared
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion
of the Group, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all the attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate. Note 6 provides further information on how the
Group accounts for government grants.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to various types of financial
risks: market risk (including cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's interest rate risk
arises from its loans receivable (Note 18), pledged deposit
and cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) and bank and
other borrowings (Note 24). Except for pledged deposit,
cash and cash equivalents and bank and other borrowings
which are entitled to interest at variable rates, and expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk, loans receivable
are issued at fixed rates.

As at 31 December 2020, if market interest rates had
been 1% higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profits would have been approximately
HKS$765,000 higher/lower (2019: HK$918,000 lower/
higher), respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The Group's main income generating
activity is lending to customers and therefore credit risk is
a principal risk.

The Group's credit risk arises from pledged deposit, cash
and cash equivalents, loans receivable, interest receivables
and deposits and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. The carrying
amounts of these balances represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets which are stated as follows:

Loans receivable (Note 18)
Interest receivables (Note 19)
Deposits and other receivables
(Note 20) (FF5E20)
Pledged deposit (Note 21(b))

(Mt3E21(a))

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all of the Group’s
pledged deposit and cash at bank are deposited in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong, which the
Group’s management believes are of high credit quality.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)
(i)

Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk management

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for each
of their new and existing customers before standard
payment terms and conditions are offered. In particular,
the Group manages its credit risk by:

- Ensuring that the Group has appropriate credit
risk practices, including an effective system of
internal control, to consistently determine adequate
allowances in accordance with the Group's stated
policies and procedures, HKFRS and relevant
supervisory guidance.

- Creating credit policies to protect the Group against
the identified risks including the requirements to
obtain collateral from borrowers, to perform robust
ongoing credit assessment of borrowers and to
continually monitor exposures against internal risk
limits.

- Limiting concentrations of exposure by type of asset,
counterparties, credit rating, geographic location
etc..

- Ifthereis no independent rating, risk control assesses
the credit quality of the customer, taking into
account its financial position, past experience and
other factors.

- Establishing a robust control framework regarding
the authorisation structure for the approval and
renewal of credit facilities.

- Developing and maintaining the Group’s processes
for measuring ECL including monitoring of credit risk,
incorporation of forward-looking information and the
method used to measure ECL.

- Ensuring that the Group has policies and procedures
in place to appropriately maintain and validate
models used to assess and measure ECL.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 HMERREEGE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiERmEAE(E)
(b) Creditrisk (Continued) (b) =EREEE)
(i) Measurement of ECL (i) FARIEEEIRIE
The Group measures loss allowance under HKFRS 9 ECL REERBEEMBRELENS

model. The measure of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e., the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial assets is

credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The key inputs used for measuring ECL are:

Probability of default (PD);

Loss given default (LGD); and

Exposure at default (EAD)
These figures are generally derived from internally
developed statistical models and other historical data and

they are adjusted to reflect probability-weighted forward-
looking information.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Creditrisk (Continued)

(i) Measurement of ECL (Continued)
Elements of the ECL models that are considered
accounting judgements and estimates include:

The Group's estimation of probabilities of default to
individual group;

The Group's criteria for assessing if there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and so allowances
for financial assets should be measured on a lifetime
ECL basis and the qualitative assessment;

Development of ECL models, including the various
formulas and the choice of inputs over determination
of the period over which the entity is exposed to
credit risk based on the behavioural life of the credit
exposures, loss given default and collateral recovery
of the credit exposures;

Determination of associations between
macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs,
such as delinquency ratios and collateral values, and
the effect on probabilities of default, exposures at
default and losses given default; and

Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic
scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive
the economic inputs into the ECL models.

It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review its
models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust
when necessary.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 BXEKREE(E)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Creditrisk (Continued)
(ii)  Measurement of ECL (Continued)

3.1 Ej%n@@%(:-ﬂ)
(b) EEmEEE)
(i) FRHEEREE(E)

The Group categorises the credit quality of its loans
receivable and interest receivables according to 3 different
stages under the ECL model:

Stage 1: financial assets without significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition where loss
allowance is calculated based on 12-month ECL

Stage 2: financial assets with significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition where loss
allowance is calculated based on lifetime ECL

Stage 3: credit impaired assets where loss allowance
is calculated based on lifetime ECL

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Creditrisk (Continued)

(i)  Measurement of ECL (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant decrease in credit
rating of the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtors’ ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Creditrisk (Continued)

(ii)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group monitors all financial assets that are subject
to impairment requirements to assess whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If there has been a significant increase in
credit risk, the Group will measure the loss allowance
based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.

The Group collects performance and default information
about its credit risk exposures and analyses all data
collected using statistical model and estimates the
remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are
expected to change over time. The factors taken into
account in this process include macro-economic data
such as delinquency rate on residential mortgage and
residential property price index. The Group generates a
‘base case’ scenario of the future direction of relevant
economic variables as well as a representative range of
other possible forecast scenarios. The Group then uses
these forecasts, which are probability-weighted, to adjust
its estimates of PDs.

The Group uses different criteria to determine whether
credit risk has increased significantly and the Group
presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group has monitoring procedures in place to make
sure that the criteria used to identify significant increases
in credit are effective, meaning that significant increase
in credit risk is identified before the exposure is defaulted
or when the asset becomes 30 days past due. The Group
performs periodic back-testing of its ratings to consider
whether the drivers of credit risk that led to default were
accurately reflected in the rating in a timely manner.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Creditrisk (Continued)

(ii)

Measurement of ECL (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group has controls and procedures in place to identify
when the credit risk of an asset improves and the definition
of significant increase in credit risk is no longer met. When
this is the case the asset may move back to stage 1 from
stage 2, subject to payments being up to date and the
ability of the borrower to make future payments on time.

Default and credit-impaired

The Group considers that default has occurred when
the instrument is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate. In particular, the following qualitative
indicators are taken into account in determining the risk of
default occurring:

probable bankruptcy entered by the borrowers; and
death of the debtor.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Group uses forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort in its assessment
of significant increase of credit risk as well as in its
measurement of ECL. The Group uses internal and external
information to generate a ‘base case’ scenario of future
forecast of relevant economic variables along with a
representative range of other possible forecast scenarios.
The external information used includes economic data
and forecasts published by governmental bodies and
monetary authorities.

The Group uses multiple scenarios to model the nonlinear
impact of assumptions about macroeconomic factors
on ECL. The Group applies probabilities to the forecast
scenarios identified.

In applying the forward-looking information and
probabilities to the forecast scenario identified for
assessing the expected credit losses as at 31 December
2020, the Group has taken into account the possible
impacts associated with the epidemic and the overall
change in economic environment.
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3.1 IBEKREE(E)

(b) =EERE)

(i) 1=EREEHO
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Creditrisk (Continued)
(i)~ Credit risk exposure
The credit quality classification of loans receivable and
their respective interest receivables using the Group's ECL
model is set out in the table below:

As at 31 December 2020
R-E-ZF+-A=+-H
Stage 2 Stage 3
Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL

Stage 1
12-month
ECL
K&
1218 A
AH
FEEER

F-ER
2HES
FEER

BEoRBR
2HES
FEER

Loans receivable EWER 641,510 76,714 27,087 745,311
Impairment allowance BB (1,569) (1,104) (749) (3,422)
Loans receivable FEWEFh

—netof impairment allowance  — IR ERE 639,941 75,610 26,338 741,889
Interest receivables FEUH &, 2,326 2,518 2,440 7,284
Impairment allowance BERRE (17) (36) (88) (141)
Interest receivables FEURA &,

-net of impairment allowance  — BRI E & 2,309 2,482 2,352 7,143
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 HKEREE(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIERREE(E)

(b) Creditrisk (Continued) (b) EEREE(E)
(iii)  Credit risk exposure (Continued) (i) EEREEMO(E

As at 31 December 2019
RZE-NF+ZA=1—H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
12-month Lifetime Lifetime
ECL ECL
F—FEE
1218 A ERER
TR
EEBE
Loans receivable EWEZ 857,974 65,746 24,977 948,697
Impairment allowance TERE (3,766) (257) (940) (4,963)
Loans receivable JEWEFR
—netof impairment allowance  — IR IREEE 854,208 65,489 24,037 943,734
Interest receivables FEUF 2 4225 1,265 1132 6,622
Impairment allowance BERE (41 (8) (74) (123)
Interest receivables TS
—netof impairment allowance  — IR IREEE 4184 1,257 1,058 6,499
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 B¥EREREGE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 B REEE (&)

(b) Creditrisk (Continued) (b) EEmEE )

(iv) Sensitivity analysis (iv) BUREZHT
The allowance for credit losses is sensitive to the inputs FEEBRERSHNFTEE NI
used in internally developed models, macroeconomic EMRARFERONL2E - ATl
variables in the forward-looking forecasts, economic FEANEELEES KESS
scenario weighting and other factors considered when HEE DA I JE R B RS 2 B A
applying expert judgment. Changes in these inputs, HMRAXREZRHEN - 252
assumptions and judgments impact the assessment of H - BREMHENERBYEEE
significant increase in credit risk and the measurement of [7L B g@ﬁ%iﬂf‘bﬂ)ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁggﬂéﬁ
ECLs. EEATE
The following table shows the impact on ECL allowance T%%ﬁﬂ‘\ﬁﬂﬂﬁ( HME R 2B A
on loans receivable and interest receivables as at 31 ZoFF+ZA=1+—HH
December 2020 by changing individual input. FEHQE?*"&FEW%'J SREAEE

EBIEEESHRE -

Impact on ECL allowance on loans

Change in input on ECL model receivable and interest receivables
. HEERWER &FELBUFIJEE’J
BREEBREETNSHET RHCEERERGER
- Assuming a further 10% weighting added to - Decrease by HK$1,000
the probability of the optimistic scenario and a - EA,0008 T

corresponding 10% weighting reduction in the
base scenario

- BREZBBRAOSE-TEIMnNEER
MREARIBIFEAR R A 10%H &=

- Assuming a further 10% weighting added to - Increase by HK$459,000
the probability of the pessimistic scenario and a - 1%50459,0007 7T

corresponding 10% weighting reduction in the
base scenario

- BRESBEREOBRRE—SEIM 0% EE K
MREARBIFEAEER A 10%# &=

- Assuming no significant increase in credit risk - Decrease by HK$414,000
since initial recognition was identified (i.e., all the - B 414,0007 7T

financial assets in Stage 2 moved to Stage 1)

- BEREEVRERREEE R SRR (A
F_REBENAETREESBES —KER)

- Assuming the forecast collateral value increase by - Decrease by HK$725,000
10% - R725,000/ 7T

- BRREUERREELTT10%

- Assuming the forecast collateral value decrease by - Increase by HK$859,000
10% - 3810859,000/& 7T

- REFEHERREETE10%
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)
(v)

(vi)

Credit risk (Continued)

Collateral held as security

The Group holds collateral against certain loans receivable
in the form of mortgages over property. As at 31 December
2020, except for HKS$ 1,178,000 gross loans receivable of the
Group were unsecured, all the gross loans receivable of the
Group were secured by mortgages over property. Majority
of the collateral are residential properties, commercial
properties and industrial properties and all of the collateral
are located in Hong Kong.

In the majority of cases, the Group grants loans with
a loan-to-value ratio of no more than 70% of the
value in the valuation report of the property for first
property mortgages, and where it is a subordinated
property mortgage, the aggregate lending (Group's loan
aggregated with all prior mortgage loans) of no more than
70% of the value of the underlying property. Approval
from a director of the subsidiary of the Company, a credit
manager and a credit officer is needed for loans granted
with a loan-to-value ratio that exceeds 70%. The directors
and senior management of the Company meet regularly
to review the loan to value ratio and when (1) there is a
significant change in the property price index in Hong
Kong; or (2) when loans are renewed. The directors and
senior management of the Company consider that the
credit risk arising from the loans and interest receivables is
significantly mitigated by the property held as collateral,
with reference to the market value of the property which
were valued by independent third party valuers as at the
end of the reporting period.

Concentration on credit risk

Revenue from the top five customers constituted
approximately 19.4% (2019: 14.4%) of the Group's revenue
for the year ended 31 December 2020. They accounted for
approximately 25.7% (2019: 20.1%) of the gross mortgage
loans receivable balances as at 31 December 2020.

3

¥R EE (F)

3.0 B EREEE)

(b)
(v)

(vi)

=ERER (&)

I EEBIERIE R

AEB U ERBE LA TR
WEREEERR N_T=F
F+—A=+—8 - 1,178,000
BIALEEERE AR EEA
Hh - REB R PEKEFRETEU
VSRR IR - RES DB S
REZYE BEMERIEYD
¥ MAEERBREMLRES -

FERZHERT HRE—%E
%8 AEBERTERNIEBK
BT RBBYEGERSREED
70% : WAE IR - AlE
Bezm(AEEEREZAA
RIBERMEE) TSHBREEH
YIZEBENT0% » &% HIRBKE
FRIB70% M B RBK AR BB
NAEE FELEREESZS
HE - EMBBMEEREBE
BERERY  AQBENE
BHRS - ARBIEERERERE
Be R RITEE  RIIRBK
Y o (KRB B = HIHERET
HETRREIARMYENE - &
NABEENSRERERE R
BREKRERKERF EHEER
& Ty IR I R Y E KRR
fif o

EEEFERE
BHE-_Z-_ZTF+H="1—
BIEFE  AREPBAMAR
EFRAL19.4%( —F— N4 -
144%)  (h—Z-_ZTF+ R
—t+—BHNERIZBE XL
BRABEFEX257%( T — N EFE
20.1%) °
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facility. Cash flow
forecasting is performed by management. The Group
monitors its rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet
operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom
on its undrawn borrowing facilities at all times so that
the Group does not breach borrowing limits on any
of its borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takes into
consideration the Group's debt financing plans, covenant
compliance, compliance with internal financial position
ratio targets and, if applicable external regulatory or legal

requirements.

The Group has undrawn borrowing facilities of
HK$301,300,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$223,109,000). Such undrawn borrowing facilities expire
within one year and are annual facilities subject to review

every year.

The Group's primary cash requirements, apart from
granting loans to customers, are for payment of bank and
other borrowings and payment for interest and operating

expenses.

3

B ORISR M ()

¥R EE ()

3.0 B ERREE(E)

(c)

MEEZ R

BERPESRRERREBD
EHEARNEERERE  #i15
TRORERARES - BER
EBRBAREEEEL - AREE
REHARERBE ST RKOR
BIER - ARREABRHRS
ENEERE - WNMEFAERE
HAREDERBREERFTH L
R EAKETEEREEME
ARENERRE - ZTRAEZE
BASENEGRETS - an
BTIEM - ABH BRI R E
FOFEIRE - UR(n@EA) s
EEEE SR EMRTERE T/

R-E-_TF+-_A=+—8 "
AREBRNREIRIERRE B
301,300,000/ L ( ZF— NLF -
223,109,000/ 7T ) ° #Z AR IREUE
REER—FREH  ABEBAE
BFERINTERE -

AEENT2REFRL(AFTP
RO ERERIN) BRIRIT R EA
18 R A R M B S & RS A

Eo
A °
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 UBEBREERGE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 IBEKREE(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) mEBEZREE(E)
The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities TEROMBEREFRKEAHE
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining HHMNFSBERES AEENE
period at the end of the reporting year to the contractual MBeE2aBE AR - RAFAT
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the BESHEAAHNATRIRER
contractual undiscounted cash flows. 2o
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—8
2020 2019
—ECEF —FE-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Within one year —FR
Other payables (Note 23) Hth EAT R IE (MI7E23) 792 1315
Bank and other borrowings (Note 24) #R1T R E AR (I 5E24) 48,700 176,891
Lease liabilities (Note 15(a)) HEAEPEE5a) 1,437 4,066
One to two years —EmF
Lease liabilities (Note 15(a)) HEBEE50) - 1,437
50,929 183,709
3.2 Capital management 32 EXER
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard REBEBEARN B RRRELSFE
their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can KRB - BUTEReEE RIRR
continue to provide returns to the shareholder and benefits for IR ORI A E A F 25 AERE A TR
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure Flzs - ARG SIERE AR AR
to reduce the cost of capital. EEARKA »
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group BEFNARERNREE  AEENE
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return FEI M FRENRESE - AR
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce REEAR  BIIHROILEEEN
debt. R o
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3 B¥EREERGE)
3.2 Capital management (Continued) 3.2 BEREE(E)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. REENUEEBBLRAEEERE
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net IR o SR RIRES FREBRIANE K458
debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘bank and other HE - @GR FRREReE(BES
borrowings’ and ‘lease liabilities’ as shown in the consolidated P AR RIRE [R1T R EAME
statement of financial position) less pledged deposit and cash IR [HEBRE]) BB EBFERFME
and cash equivalents. Total equity is calculated as ‘equity’ as ERRSEEMTE - BBk E
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. The BN RITRE [#FRIGTE - K
Group's strategy remains unchanged, which was to maintain EBEMREERTE  EEBELE
the gearing ratio within 100%, and the gearing ratios and net HFFE100% AR MALEER ZF
cash/debt position of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and —EFEN_E-NF+_A=1+—H
2019 are as follows: MEEBBLERRES EHKIF
BT :
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2020 2019
—ECEF —FE-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHT
Bank and other borrowings (Note 24) SRIT R H M AR (M sE24) 48,700 176,891
Lease liabilities (Note 15(a)) HEaEPF150) 1,437 5,503
Less: pledged deposit and cash and cash 38, : DHEIFFREBR & KB L
equivalents (Note 21) ZEW(ME21) (140,269) (31,914)
Net (cash)/debt R MEBFR (90,132) 150,480
Total equity R EER 841,341 786,376
Gearing ratio BEBELE Not applicable
TEHA 19.1%
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4 CRITICAL ESTIMATES, JUDGEMENTS AND ERRORS 4

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of
accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the
actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement in
applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates
(a) Estimation of recoverability of loans and other

receivables

The Group assesses provision for impairment of loans
and other receivables based on an estimate of the
recoverability of these receivables. Provisions are applied
to loans and other receivables where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of impairment of loans
and other receivables under HKFRS 9 requires the use
of estimates and judgement. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of receivables and provision for
impairment losses in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.

The Group uses judgement in making assumptions and
selecting the inputs to its ECL calculation, based on the
Group's past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Details of the key assumption and inputs used are
disclosed in Note 3.1.

(b) Critical judgement in income tax
The Group is subject to income tax in Hong Kong.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in
which such determination is made.

BAgRMAET - FIETREERR

REFTEHRRFBEEAGFEF - BERE
& ZEEFRIZAERBER - EHE
ERASE @ BERRIHE2EL A
% o

BET AV T RER G - HIABELR K
HEAEAER SREUTRTERR
MBRAREFEBERTRRBR/AEZR
KEMFZTEH -

4.1 BREEGE

(a) EFREMENETKEEZ
&5t
AEBIREE R H A B UK
MT@WE%J%E&%EWM
EMWﬁWﬁ EBEEMHSEBR
LR E RN E D U R IE A
FRARMBEW O R - BIFEFABEE
*ETE?%T“%%%@& 2 I 25 9 5% FE
REF R E M W GRIE R B EE
%ﬁﬁ&ﬂ% MTEEA Rl &
AR - BB EZRSE e v E
B BT HIR B W SR TE KR
BEFERERAE -

RERESHR - AEEREBEEE
SRERHE - BREFTINLA K ATRE 1
Fﬁ.ﬁr LL%IJﬁﬂ’EtHM—rT““
BEABHEREERITENGA
BE - BREREAFENRAR
GO PN S ERE

(b) F73H 9B 5 H B
REBREBBEGANNGEH - B
ENSRBEERAELERH
i - ZIR 5 M EREHIARE
EX B - REERBEMBE
b ek R A CE S
u+$ﬂﬁ§u/u~%1 c fHZEEEN

RIRBABREN PSS RE
J ﬁf‘%%%ﬁﬂﬁ’%;f’ﬁﬁﬁfam

FE HAE] 9 B RO IR 1S3
é?&ﬁ@f
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, all of the
Group's revenue was generated from the money lending business
of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in Hong
Kong. Revenue represents interest income earned from loans offered
to the Group's customers. Information reported to the Group's chief
operating decision maker, for the purpose of resource allocation
and assessment of the Group’s performance, is focused on the
operating results of the Group as a whole as the Group's resources
are integrated and no discrete financial information is available.
Accordingly, no segment analysis or information about the Group's
products and services are presented.

All of the Group's revenue from external customers and assets was
generated from and located in Hong Kong during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue represents the interest income earned from the money
lending business of providing property mortgage loans and personal
loans in Hong Kong. Revenue and other income recognised during
the year are as follows:

B ORISR M ()

7 ERE

REBEEZZE-_ZEFR-_ZE—NF+=A
“t+—HILFE  AEBHBAELEER
BB REMELZBERMALAERNER
5% - WARBEBRFAEBEFLNERA
BEER B BURA - MAEEE RSB KK
BFFEME  ERTAEEEBLEREK
EMERETREESAEEERATH
EEBYMIEERER THAREBEREK
BEE REI WEZIEBASEER
HARIEH D E DT E R} o

REBE_FT_FTFER_F-AF+=-A
=T-RALEFE  AKEREIIBELH
FIBERARBEAELERUREER
W o

WA R E U A
WA BRE BRI ERIBERRIA

B E RGP R BUA - REF
W R UA R B ALT

Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=1t—HLFE

Revenue WA
Interest income M EWA

Other income Habg A
Bank interest income RITH BUA
Government grants (Note (a)) BT B (M 3E @)

(@) Being wage subsidies provided by the Hong Kong Government
under the Employment Support Scheme during the year ended
31 December 2020. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attaching to these grants.

2020 2019
—g-%F —TNF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
F#T T
103,277 121,737
36 80

1,295 -
1,331 80

@ BM#EE-—ZT-_ZTF+-_A=+—HI
FEEBBNBRE R G E1RE
M T AR - ZE W ERERIKE
ek E s REIE -
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7 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 7 1THBEX

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-HA=1+—HLEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FHET
Employee benefit expenses EEEFFRX
(including directors’ emoluments) (Note 9) (B IEZZHEM) (Fizr9) 11,310 12,029
Advertising and marketing expenses EE RIS HEER 4,843 8,397
Legal and professional fees FRENEEER 1,045 1,757
Auditor's remuneration ZEEn N &
- Audit services — FAZARTE 800 1,200
~ Non-audit services — TR 263 370
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERRETE(ME14)
equipment (Note 14) 424 582
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEETE(HTE150)
(Note 15(b)) 4,026 2,664
Operating lease of land and buildings THREFHLEHEE
(Short-term leases) (FEHEE) - 1,358
Other administrative expenses Hih TR 1,738 2,281
24,449 30,638
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REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSSES/(IMPAIRMENT 8 BERBEEE CHESRE) - FH8E
LOSSES) - NET

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-_ZF+-_H=t+—HLEE

Lifetime Lifetime

expected expected

12 months creditloss credit loss
expected not credit credit
credit loss impaired impaired

(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)

FEERE EERE

128888 WEHPHEE HEHES

FEFE FEEE FEEE
(F—FRR) (E=ER) (F=BR) et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THET THET FHET

Net reversal of/(charge for) EREFURER G

provisions for impairment B gL ()

assessment on loans receivable ecd-cl 2,197 (847) 191 1,541
Net reversal of/(charge for) FEMR BB E RS

provisions for impairment BERR (X))

assessment on interest FEE

receivables 24 (28) (14) (18)

2,221 (875) 177 1,523

Year ended 31 December 2019
E—E-NE+-_A=1t—HIFE
Lifetime Lifetime
expected expected
12 months credit loss credit loss
expected not credit credit
credit loss impaired impaired

(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
FEEERIE EERE

12EAEE WE2EEE SH2HES
EEEE EEER EEER

(F—BEER) (FE=RRER) (B=FREE) #ax
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
THT TET TFET FET
Net (charge for)/reversal of FEWE ZORE R E
provisions for impairment BB (), #E
assessment on loans receivable SFEE (2,751) 1,734 (398) (1,415)
Net (charge for)/reversal of eI R BB B R H
provisions for impairment B (), #O
assessment on interest SFEE
receivables (28) 35 (17) (10)

(2,779) 1,769 (415) (1,425)
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

9

¥ @ R
RIRE A — FE R E
(BfaE)

Salaries, benefits and bonus
Pension costs — defined contribution plans
(Note)

Note: The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of
Hong Kong. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
in Hong Kong are each required to contribute 5% of their gross earnings with a
ceiling of HK$1,500 per month to the MPF Scheme. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the Scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future year.

Contributions totalling HK$58,000 (2019: HK$69,000) were payable to the fund at
the year-end date.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group include 4 (2019: 3) directors for the year ended 31 December
2020, whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note
30. The emoluments payable to the remaining 1 (2019: 2) individual
for the year ended 31 December 2020 are as follows:

BEENAX (BEESHH)

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-H=1+—HLEE

2020 2019
—ECEZH —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
10,976 11,674

334 355
11,310 12,029

C AERRBEESCRFM AR ST RGNS S
BEIEATEREEN([RESEE]) - BIRR
BostEga  EARIREESSHARE
BFRFER 5% (T A R A1,500/8 7T ) M8 &
SERTEIER - ERESEIN  AEEWET
EARMETEIEL RN - MED IR
A RER D R R SRR o

HEFHAENESHK
(ZZ—J14 : 69,000 T)

TEBRESHMAL

4 £ £58,00078 7T

BE-_Z2-_EF+-_A=+—HILFE "
AEBRNEERSHFHALRIEIG(ZF

—NAF3R)EF  HFHMCE RBRRM
FH30PIRAMA - BE-_ZT_TF+_A
=t—RALEFE BENTHTIR(ZF
—NE 2R)REFHMALHFHMOT

Year ended 31 December
BE+-—A=t+—HLFE

e WA RIEAT
RIRE A — FE WA 8

Salaries, benefits and bonus
Pension costs — defined contribution plans

2020 2019
—B_EF —EF-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiExT FHBT

642 2,600

18 36

660 2,636
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 9 EERANBEXZ(CTEESHH) (E)
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (CONTINUED)

The above individuals with the highest emoluments are within the FiissHEMA T WEENT -
following bands:

Year ended 31 December
BE+=-HA=1t—HILLEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
Emoluments bands M E
HK$500,001 - HK$1,000,000 500,001;8 7L & 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$ 1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,00178 7T 22,000,000/ 7T - 1
1 2
During the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no emoluments BHE_Z-_ZFR_FT—-—NF+=H
had been paid by the Group to the directors or the five highest-paid =+—H JAJEEJ* RE .I?ﬁiﬁ%%jt
individuals referred above as an inducement to join or upon joining MAZSE=SHMA LIS ERESBESM
the Group or as a compensation for loss of office. ASIIATR & B8 8 52 B s fE R BB A 1 o
FINANCE COSTS 10 BAFEA
Year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=1+—HILEE
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE—-hF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
F#&T FAT
Finance costs B 3 B AR
Interest expenses on secured bank loans EEMBITERFERAEZ 512 1,904
Interest expenses on unsecured bank loans — fEIKIFRITE R BB X - 514
Interest expenses on secured BEMPEAMERFERT
other borrowings 4,365 11,577
Interest expenses on loans from a related RN A ERFERX
company - 757
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBEFEMX 215 283
5,092 15,035
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 REHAX
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 8.25% BIE-ZT—FBHUSET) (F75%) &5
for the first HK$2,000,000 estimated assessable profits and 16.5% BRSIAFGSHHEEMRABS @ G EREE
for estimated assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 for the group B 559 52,000,000 JT 1 51 BR 5 i ) 4%
entity qualified for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime introduced 8.25%E & » 2,000,000 T A _E 5T
pursuant to the Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017. For FERBEFIZ165%E L BE - AT A
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates MBHFNERERNEBREEMES - &5
regime, Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at a flat rate of FEFIARL K 16.5%K 5 — T R {EH B -
16.5%.

EED
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 11 REHMAXZ(E)
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated statement of FFAAHEERERNFSH&REE

comprehensive income represents:

Year ended 31 December
BEt+-A=1+—HLEE

2020 2019
b g 55 —T-hF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
Current tax RVER# I8
— Current tax on profits for the year —FREAEIREE 12,260 12,593
— Over-provision in prior years — TG (20) (95)
Total current tax BHATR I8 48 KA 12,240 12,498
Deferred tax (Note 22) EERTE (MH3E22)
— Decrease/(increase) in deferred income —IREMEHEER D, (1)
tax assets 185 (279)
Income tax expense FEFFAX 12,425 12,219
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the AR EEHBMNEB DG EE 5518 s
theoretical amount that would arise as follows: Bme B IR R’ T -
Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=+—-HLEE
2020 2019
—EC-EBFE —ZT-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before income tax R F 1S B A& A 76,590 74,719
Calculated at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 32 & 76 A 1551 F1 28 8.25%3£16.5%
8.25% or 16.5% (2019: 8.25% or 16.5%) FE(ZZE—NF 1 825%K
16.5%) 12,472 12,164
Over-provision in prior years T EBRERE (20) (95)
Income not subject to taxation BAERFUA (220) (12)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR 0FR R 2 214 252
Tax effect of temporary difference not AERERE=BENHSTE
recognised 1 (“47)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised BRI AR ERBIBBER
tax losses now recognised to reduce MR Al R D B EARE 18
current tax (22) (43)
Income tax expense FMEFHFHE 12,425 12,219
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department (the “IRD”") has issued enquiries and a letter to
the Company disagreeing with certain interest income received by
the Company during the years of assessment 2015/16 and 2016/17
being claimed as capital and offshore in nature.

Notices of assessment of HK$129,000 and HK$3,058,000 were issued
by IRD to the Company for the years of assessment 2015/16 and
2016/17, respectively. The Company has lodged objection against
the tax assessments with IRD considering that valid technical
grounds are available in claiming the said interest income as
capital and offshore nature. IRD agreed to hold over the tax claim
subject to the purchase of tax reserve certificates of HK$3,187,000,
which was purchased by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2018. During the year ended 31 December 2020, a notice
of assessment of HK$1,310,000 was further issued by the IRD to the
Company for the year of assessment 2017/18 on the said interest
income. The Company has lodged an objection against the tax
assessment 2017/18 with the IRD on the same technical grounds and
has purchased an additional tax reserve certificate of HK$1,310,000
for holding over the tax claim during the year ended 31 December
2020. As at 31 December 2020, the case is referred to the Appeals
Section for the Commissioner’s determination.

As the ultimate outcome cannot presently be determined and
with a view of probable outflow with resources, a tax provision of
HKS$4,522,000 in respect of the tax enquiries has been provided in
prior year and the Company considered that adequate provision has
been made in the Group's consolidated financial statements.

B F AR M (&)

11 FEHRRAX(E)

HE_ZT—+tHF+-_A=+—HILFE
FERHR(BRBH]) MAREHEL
ERRETF  RRTRAEBEARAR-F
—B/—RERZE—R/ L FIARF
EWEZ & T B WA RRBER L BEF
& -

BRERAARARR_-ZT—0/ — ~Fk_
TN/t FIBREERLIRBNS
B 5 Bl 129,000 7T K& 3,058,000 JT °
RAEEBEFERREMIBEEEA M
FEWABEARBMEEERARIERDIE
HREHRIBFR - REHRAEGEBIER
R - AIRABERI$3,187,0008 7T+ &
NAEREE_ZE—NF+_A=+—
ALFEEABE HE_ZT_TF+=
A=+—HLEFE  BEBHAELRF
BWAN#E—FRAARAR =T —+— N\
FRRFEZFHTRBALSEA1,310,000
BIT o AR EIRERBAMIEE AR B
PR -ZT—+ — \FFRBEFH - M
AAREREBE-_Z-_ZF+_-_A=1+—
AIEFEBEREIMET 1,310,000 7T -
NEERERR RZTE_ZTF+=A
=t+—H ZEXREEN T LFEERES
RTE °

HRRRERANREETRERIEE
BINRE T REE R E—FE R AREHIE
& E AR 4,522,000 7T © BARQ
ARABERAEENAHMBREIEDT
TR -
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12

13

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(@) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$64,165,000 (2019:
HK$62,500,000) by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year of 400,000,000 (2019: 400,000,000

12 BRER

(a) BREAXRZEF
EREABAZAQGES AEG
i 64,165,000 7T ( ZF — L F -
62,500,000/ 70 ) BR LA FF N E 81T &
i B DN AE S 159 81400,000,000 % (= =

shares). —LEF 1 400,000,00008) 5T & °
Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=+—-HLEE
2020 2019
—E-EF —T—hF
Profit attributable to owners of the KRRE B ANEIEET
Company (HK$'000) (F#&T) 64,165 62,500
Weighted average number of ordinary At EGARERE TP A E
shares in issue for basic earnings BT E BRI T E
per share ('000) (Fi%) 400,000 400,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) BREARBFCEML) 16.0 15.6

(b) Diluted earnings per share
There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding
during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 and hence
the diluted earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings
per share.

DIVIDEND

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020 of
HK6.4 cents per share, totalling HK$25,600,000, and a special dividend
of HK3.2 cents, totalling HK$12,800,000, are to be proposed at the
upcoming annual general meeting. These consolidated financial
statements do not reflect these dividends payable.

(b) EREERR
HE—_Z-_ZFR-_T—NF+=A
=—t+—BLEFE  BEHRTENEA
BESHENTAER AULSREER
FIERFRREARZFIMER o

13 RE

RABEREEREBEFTAS FRZFIRM
HE-_ZTZ-_TF+_-_A=+—BILtFE
B K BB B E A% 6.4 1l (A £ 25,600,000
Bor) c REFRIRE A2BN - (A
12,800,000870) ° &4 HHBI 3R = I &
BRI EAREE o

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT T
Interim dividend paid of nil EURS A HR AR BB AR T B
(2019: HK2.4 cents) per share (ZZ—N%F : 2475810) - 9,600
Proposed final dividend of HK6.4 cents BRI RER S8 Rke.47 L
(2019: HK2.3 cents) per share (ZZ—N%F : 23781) 25,600 9,200
Proposed special dividend of HK$3.2 cents %K (45 BI IR B &A% 3 2751
(2019: Nil) per share (ZZE—N&F : &) 12,800 =
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As at 31 December 2018
Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2019
Opening net book amount
Additions

Disposals
Depreciation

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2019
Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2020

Opening net book amount
Additions
Depreciation

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2020
Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book amount

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

RZE-N\F
+=ZA=+-H

B AR
2FIERRE

SREFE

HE-2-N0F
tT-A=+t—-HILEE

FOREFE

NE

&

e

FRREFE

R-B—N%F
t=A=t+-H
AR

R ERAEE

SREFE

BE-_E_-ZfF
+=-A=+—-HILEE

FHEmFE

RNE

e

ERREFE

R-E-EHF
+=ZA=+-H

B AR

ZEHTE MRE

AR EFHE

BREEREARAT 2020 Fik

Furniture,
fixtures and
equipment

HK$'000
AT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORISR M ()

14 Y%  BWERRZRE

Leasehold
improvements Total

HEWREE #Et

HK$'000
TAT

HK$'000
TAT

3,001 2,793 5794
(1,846) (2,671) (4,517)
1,155 122 1,277
1,155 122 1,277

19 - 19
(28) - (28)
(518) (64) (582)
628 58 686
2,805 2,793 5,598
(2,177) (2,735) (4,912)
628 58 686
628 58 686
8 - 8
(366) (58) (424)
270 - 270
2,811 2,793 5,604
(2,541) (2,793) (5,334)
270 - 270
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15 LEASES 15 H8
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (a) REBEBARRRAEZHIRR
of financial position b= ]
The consolidated statement of financial position shows the AEHMBRAERRBIATARREER
following amounts relating to leases: RIE

As at 31 December

—EEF —T-NEF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET T
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Land and buildings T REF 1,362 5,388
Lease liabilities HEAE
Current bk 1,437 4,066
Non-current IERB - 1,437
1,437 5,503
No additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended 31 BHE_Z_TF+_A=+—H1t
December 2020 (2019: HK$8,052,000). FEITEABECREEE(ZZ—N

£F 1 8,052,000 7T) °
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15 LEASES (CONTINUED) 15 HE(HE)
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (b) REMGEWBRAEZNR
of comprehensive income i)
The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows EHEENERATABHENR
the following amounts relating to leases: I8 -
Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=+—-BLFE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B aE F#&T FHTT
Depreciation charge of FRAEEEREER
right-of-use assets
Land and buildings T RIEF 7 4,026 2,664
Interest expense (included in FEFSZ (FFABERKA)
finance cost) 10 215 283
Expense relating to short-term FRAEHHEENRS
leases (included in administrative (GtATTEHEX)
expenses) 7 - 1,358
The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31 HEZZ-_ZF+-A=+—HLHF
December 2020 was HK$4,281,000 (2019: HK$4,190,000). B - HEMIR SN H AT 34,281,000
BIT(ZZ— 5 4,190,000 7T) °
(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are () AEENWHEETEREARY
accounted for B3
The Group leases office and warehouse. Rental contracts are AEBHERAEZEREE - HEEGY
typically made for fixed periods of 2 years. —MRLLEREEHR TR
Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain TERE R EEREY - BREEET
a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease EHEAR R GE - REHBAABBENHEE
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the BEPHERERI  HERETE
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the MEREMEE - HEEETEAR
lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing ERPER -
purposes.
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16 S

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December

B 7% s B ot (48D

UBSIDIARIES

2020:

Directly owned:

ERER:

GIC (Overseas) Holdings Limited (‘GIC

Overseas’)
GIC (Overseas) Holdings Limited
(TGIC Overseas))

GITI (Overseas) Limited
("GITI (Overseas)")
GITI (Overseas) Limited

(TGITI (Overseas)])

Indirectly owned:

MRS
Global International Credit Limited

('GIC)

RKEEARLAA(RRER)

Global International Finance Limited

('GIF")

RIREFRARDA(REERH)

Global Property Finance Limited
("GPF")

RHMERIEER A ([GPF))

Place of incorporation and
kind of legal entity

AR R R
HEERED

British Virgin Islands limited
liability company
ABRABBERAF

British Virgin Islands limited
liability company
RBRABBERAF

Hong Kong limited liability
company

BEARAA

Hong Kong limited liability
company

BBBRAF

Hong Kong limited liability

company

BEARAR

16 KMIEAF

DB RFTIE

Principal activities and
place of operation

FTEXRBREELY

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBREEK

Investment holding in
Hong Kong
REBREEK

Money lending business of
providing property mortgage
loans and personal loans in
Hong Kong

REBRENFLBEHR L
MABFHERRS

Money lending business of
providing property mortgage
loans in Hong Kong

REEREMFRBERD
EREH

Money lending business of
providing personal loans in
Hong Kong

REBREILASTNETNER

Share capital

ATRR-_Z-_ZF+_-_A=+—HKE

Group's equity interest

A FREHRAER

2020
“E2RF

201 ordinary shares
USSnil

0IREBR
TETL

100%

101 ordinary shares
USSnil

101 AR
£

100%

10,100 ordinary shares
HK$391,000,000

100%
0,000 37 A%
39,000@00&%75

1,000 ordinary shares
HK$1,000
100%
1,000 & B
1,000

10,000 ordinary shares
HK$10,000
100%
10,000/ & A%
10,00087T

2019

“E-NF

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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17 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 17 REFETNERMTIA
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—H
2020 2019
—EEHF —FE-NF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
TET TET
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost R AT RS/ E =
Loans receivable (Note 18) N E R (FIE18) 741,889 943,734
Interest receivables (Note 19) FEUF B (FI5E19) 7,143 6,499
Deposits and other receivables (Note 20) e R HE b U ERIE (F3E20) 6,538 5,014
Pledged deposit (Note 21(b)) EHERFR(FEE21(0) 7,434 1,713
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21(a)) ReRBEeEEYW(MiE21a) 132,835 30,201
Total HaEt 895,839 987,161
Financial liabilities SRIAE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BN ATBEN S RAaE
Other payables (Note 23) H At T sk IB (P 5E23) 792 1315
Bank and other borrowings (Note 24) SRIT R E A SR (B EE24) 48,700 176,891
Lease liabilities (Note 15(a)) HEaFEEIE50) 1,437 5,503
Total HEt 50,929 183,709
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18 LOANS RECEIVABLE 18 BRER
As at 31 December
Rt+t=B=+—8
2020 2019
—EZEF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Loans receivable Fed &% 745,311 948,697
Less: VERE
Provision for impairment assessment RN E FURE R
of loans receivable
- Stage 1 —E R (1,569) (3,766)
- Stage 2 —E[RER (1,704) (257)
- Stage 3 —E=[BER (749) (940)
Loans receivable, net of provision MR BEENERER 741,889 943,734
Less: non-current portion o FERBEC D (357,652) (273,062)
Current portion ENEL S 384,237 670,672
The Group's loans receivable, which arise from the money lending AEBREBREVERIBEERLAAE
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in FHE R EISFTE £/ W E B LT
Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. F o
Except for loans receivable of HK$1,178,000 (2019: HK$1,878,000), br & 801,178000 8 T ( =& — L& -
which are unsecured, interest-bearing and are repayable with fixed 1,878,000/ 7T ) KK ~ 5T B0 ZE 0 B
terms agreed with customers, all loans receivable are secured by EFZTERNETHRABENERER
collaterals provided by customers, interest-bearing and are repayable Gh o FTE W E FUAR P IRERIEFRE
with fixed terms agreed with the customers. The maximum exposure R FHREWARER P TR EE
to credit risk at each of the reporting dates is the carrying value of the RAEE - REREBHBAERNRZAE
loans receivable mentioned above. ERB A L XAl EREREREE -
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18 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, loans receivable of HK$59,421,000
(2019: HK$81,165,000) were past due but not credit-impaired. As
at 31 December 2020, all overdue loans receivable were secured
property mortgage loans. As at 31 December 2019, except for
overdue personal loans receivable of HK$16,000 with no collateral,
the remaining overdue balances were property mortgage loans.
These were related to a number of third-party customers and that
the directors of the Group are of the opinion these overdue loans
receivable were fully secured by the collateral. Accordingly, these
balances are still considered to be fully recoverable.

The aging analysis of these past due but not impaired loans
receivable is as follows:

B ORISR M ()

18 EWER(E)

RZZ-_TF+_A=+—8 " BH
59,421,000 7T (ZF —JL4 : 81,165,000/
TLMEREREBBRABEREERE -
AZE-TF+-_A=+—8" %ﬁBE‘ﬁ
HEWEZ AT IEEDERIBER

E-NF+-_A=+—8" ME@H}%H&
& A B U IR 5 16,0008 7TAN » f4 T#E
MM AMERBEN - ZSERES
BBYE=FEFEH ~5£EBEERE
;ZSQHHJEH&E AHEIFmEEER - A

SRS AR 2ERE -

;Z:EQHME i AR BB FE MR B SR A BR
DTN

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H

0-30 days 0£30H
1-90 days 31290H
Over 90 days @O0 H

Further analyses on credit quality of loans receivable are set out in
Note 3.1(b).

2020 2019
—g-%F -T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiB FET
7,684 4,246
5,910 39,776
45,827 37,143
59,421 81,165
U BB R M — 5 B TR

FE3.1(b) ©
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18 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Movements on the Group’s impairment of loans receivable are as

follows:

Balance at 1 January 2020

New loans originated

Loans recovered or repaid
during the year

Transfer to 12-month expected
credit loss (Stage 1)

Transfer to lifetime expected

credit loss not credit impaired (Stage 2)

Transfer to lifetime expected credit
loss credit impaired (Stage 3)

Total transfer between stages

Impact on year end expected credit loss

of exposures transferred between
stages during the year

Movements due to changes in credit risk

As at 31 December 2020

RZB-TF-A—-R2#&H%
REHEH
FRCREHEENER

EBENEREHREE
BR(FE-ER)
ERERHEHERER
(REERE) (F-RER)
ERERHEHERER
(BEERE) (F=RER)
BREBRNER &5
em&%&a& R
FEBRNTE

EERBREESHNED

R-ZE-EF+-A=1+-H

18 EWER(HE)

AEBEWEEEFTREZBNT -

Year ended 31 December 2020

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-ER F-RER F=ER At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TEx THR TER
3,766 257 940 4,963
21 - - 21
(1,250) (36) (462) (1,748)
22 (22) - _
(296) 296 - -
(119) (129) 248 -
(393) 145 248 -
(22) 807 23 808
(553) (69) - (622)
1,569 1,104 749 3,422
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18 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 18 BWER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE-TNE+-A=t-AILEE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
F—IHER F B E=MBE
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T THT T THT
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A—-Bz&H 1015 1,991 577 3,583
New loans originated REFER 959 62 - 1,021
Loans recovered or repaid FRBYELERNER
during the year (488) (1,857) (42) (2,387)
Transfer to 12-month expected EBRENEAREHEE
credit loss (Stage 1) BE(E-KR) 99 (99) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected BV HRHEESR
credit loss not creditimpaired (Stage 2)  (REEWIE) (E=BE&) - - - -
Transfer to lifetime expected credit ERErHEREEER
loss credit impaired (Stage 3) (BEERE) (E=RE&) - (36) 36 -
Total transfer between stages EREBAES B 99 (135) 36 -
Impact on year end expected credit loss &R &R ER R F RTELH
of exposures transferred between FEBEENYE
stages during the year (19) 194 404 579
Movements due to changes in creditrisk ~ EEEMREE 5| BHEH 2,200 2 - 2,202
Write-offs sy - - (35) (35)
As at 31 December 2019 R=B-n&E+=A=t-H 3,766 257 940 4963
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18 LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 18 BWERK(E)

In general, loans receivable are considered as default when the loans
receivable or its related installments are overdue by over 90 days.
As at 31 December 2020, loans receivable of HK$27,087,000 (2019:
HK$24,977,000) was default under lifetime ECL and a provision of
HK$749,000 (2019: HK$940,000) was provided.

For loans that are not credit-impaired without significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition “Stage 1", ECL is measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default
events possible within the next 12 months. If a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition is identified (“Stage 2") but not
yet deemed to be credit impaired, ECL is measured based on lifetime
ECL. In general, when loans receivable or its related installments are
overdue by 30 days, there are significant increase in credit risk. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, total provision of HK$1,350,000
(2019: a charge of HK$1,017,000) under Stage 1 and Stage 2 was
released to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
based on assessment from ECL model.

A maturity profile of the loans receivable as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the maturity date, net of provision, is as
follows:

—MmE - MEREREEE S AR
BHERRIBOOK » BIEWERWR BEL -
R-ZE-TFE+-_A=+—H8 BUER
27,087,000 7T ( ZF — L6 : 24,977,000/
TTIREHBEHEEBETEEY B
52749, ooo,’\%yt(_?'E FLEF + 940,000
TL) BB

HRIEEERELBVARBERBUREE
[BLF N EE R E AN ([ 5 — P& ER ) B -
TEEEEBERIES R AR 2{E A R Al g 5
EREHEHSI RN HESEEEEN
LBl 2 - W B VIR EREEEANEER
SREEEMTE_RRELREAE
EERE  AEREEEBR2ESE
BEEAE - —RimE - WERERSHE
HBED B ZREE0KR - EERKRE KNIE
e #EzE—T-EF+=-_A=1+—HI
FE - REBHEEBEENOTG - £
—PEER R 5B R ER Y4B B # 1,350,000 7T
(ZZE—AF : 1%1,017,00008T) D RE
BHRA RS R PR -

RIBZHA - BURERCNREE) RRE
HIRe B MERMT

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H

Current BIVEA
Over 1 year and within 5 years iR —F R AFUARN
Over 5 years BT F

As at 31 December 2020, loans receivable with carrying value of
HK$115,699,000 (2019: HK$140,187,000) were charged to a bank to
secure a bank loan facility granted to a subsidiary of the Company
(Note 24(a)).

2020 2019
—g=%F -T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FB FET
384,237 670,672
172,156 72,156
185,496 200,906
741,889 943,734

RZZ-F+-_A=+—8 KHEEA
115,699,000/ 7T ( —Z — JLEF : 140,187,000
BB EREEH FIRIT AR
Nal— B AR ERIBITERRE EE
1R(HF3E24()) °
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LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, certain properties mortgaged to the
subsidiary of the Company for loans granted to its respective
customers were pledged to an independent third party licensed
money lender to secure a loan facility granted to a subsidiary of the
Company. These properties, with market value of HK$238,880,000
(2019: HK$418,200,000), were mortgaged to the Group for securing
loans receivable of HK$88,923,000 (2019: HK$178,075,000) (Note
24(b)).

INTEREST RECEIVABLES

B ORISR M ()

18 EWER(E)

RZZ-ZTF+_A=+—8 8FFA
?%?Eﬁﬁﬁ%f&?ﬁﬂ%$ A—MENBAR
ETYEBEF T —ZBILE= FHEN
BEA - WAKRQR R B AR EEER
BhEEER o 2 F W E ™M (E238,880,00078
TT(ZZ—F: 418,200,000 7T) @ JHik
¥ AN B A 488,923,000 T (—E— N,
F 1 178,075,00078 7T ) B FE UK B SRAE AR
(PFfF24(b)) ©

19 BWRFIE

As at 31 December
Rt+t=—BA=+—8

Interest receivables JE R 2
Less: o

Provision for impairment assessment of
interest receivables

- Stage —E R
- Stage 2 —E[BER
- Stage 3 — B =PEER
Interest receivables, net of provision R B 12 B R WR B

The Group's interest receivables, which arise from the money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans and personal loans in
Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Except for interest receivables of HK$15,000 (2019: HK$31,000),
which are unsecured and are repayable with fixed terms agreed
with the customers, all interest receivables are secured by collaterals
provided by customers and are repayable with fixed terms agreed
with the customers. The maximum exposure to credit risk at each of
the reporting dates is the carrying value of the interest receivables
mentioned above.

JE WA B B BB RT R B

2020 2019
—g=%¥F -TnF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHT FHT
7,284 6,622
(17) 41)
(36) (8)
(88) (74)
7,143 6,499
AR QR EBRENEEIBRREILA

BB RIS P E £ R U B AT
FHE -

Br A %015,0008 L (ZF— L4 © 31,0008
JL) MR IR E R LR P R E A E E HR
R AE R & R B9 - BT FEUCFI B A
EPRHOEKFRERER  WERERP
EEMETHRAEE - REHREDHAR
ﬁﬁuuma—ﬂ*bﬂ 2 /% b SCRT i E W R S
IRMEE -
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19

INTEREST RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2020, interest receivable of HK$5,010,000
(2019: HK$3,485,000) were past due but not credit-impaired. As at
31 December 2020, all overdue interest receivables were interest
derived from secured property mortgage loans. As at 31 December
2019, except for overdue personal interest receivables of HK$12,000
with no collateral, the remaining overdue balances were interest
derived from property mortgage loans. The remaining overdue
balances were interest derived from property mortgage loans.
These were related to a number of third-party customers and that
the directors of the Group are of the opinion these overdue interest
receivables and the respective loans receivable were fully secured by
the collateral. Accordingly, these balances are still considered to be
fully recoverable.

The ageing analysis of these past due but not impaired interest
receivables is as follows:

19 EWFIE (&)

R-ZTB-_FBFE+-_A=+—08 EKNE
5,010,000/ 7L ( =& — JLF : 3,485,000/8
T)EBBENKEERE RZTEZF
F+-A=Z+—8  2ICHEERFE
AREEEAYEZIBEROFE - BN
T-AFF+-A=1+—H8 BREesHEk
& A ) B AR 57 12,0008 7090 © 82 T8
&SRO BREMERBERNFE - %
EREBMZ LB IS =AEFPAR K&
B EER A% S HEF B K R
BEFAERREEER Bt 25#%
AR AR 28 m o

ZECAMERRBEZ BUH S o iRE D
T

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H

0-30 days 0£30H
31-90 days 31290H
Over 90 days @O0 H

Further analyses on credit quality of interest receivables are set out in
Note 3.1(b).

2020 2019
—g-%F -T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiB FET
1,684 2,368
1,870 768
1,456 349
5,010 3,485
U8 1) BB M — 5 5 TR

FE3.1(b) °
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19 INTEREST RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19 EWFIE ()
Movements on the Group's impairment on interest receivables are as REBEWASFEZSHINT -
follows:

Year ended 31 December 2020
BE-Z-_EF+-A=+-HLEE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F—RR ERR FZRR gt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT TR TR
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-F-ZF—F—H
s M 8 74 123
Loans recovered or repaid during the year  FREWEHEENER (12) (1) (17) (30)
Transfer to 12-month expected creditloss BB ZE12{H AEHEEER
(Stage 1) (E—-F&R) - - - -
Transfer to lifetime expected creditloss ~ EHZ 2 HEHEEESE
not credit impaired (Stage 2) (REERE) (ZRE&) (2) 2 - -
Transfer to lifetime expected creditloss ~ EBZE 2 HEHEEESE
credit impaired (Stage 3) (BEERE) (E=RE&) (1) (4) 5 -
Total transfer between stages BB NES G (3) (2) 5 -

Impact on year end expected credit loss of 4 4% B RS2 75 [ I
exposures transferred between stages HERBEHEEFRNTE

during the year - 34 26 60
Movements due to changes in creditrisk ~ ZE R E E 5| O E (9) (3) - (12)
At at 31 December 2020 R-E-EF+-H=+-H 17 36 88 14
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19 INTEREST RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 19 EWFRE(E)

Year ended 31 December 2019
BE_Z-NE+-A=+—HLFE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
F—IHER £ B E=EER
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T THT T THT
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—F—H
2B 13 43 60 116
New loans originated REFER 10 2 - 12
Loans recovered or repaid during the year  FREWEHEENER (5) (40) - (45)
Transfer to 12-month expected credit loss  EH%E 12[A AAHEEER
(Stage 1) (E—RE) 3 (3) - -
Transfer to lifetime expected creditloss BB Z2HEHEEEE
not credit impaired (Stage 2) (REERE) (BERR) - - - -
Transfer to lifetime expected creditloss ~ EBZE2HEHEEESE
credit impaired (Stage 3) (BEERE) (Z=RE&) - (1) 1 -
Total transfer between stages BB NESE Eﬁ' 3 (4) 1 -

Impact on year end expected credit loss of ilﬂy\ EEC RN
exposures transferred between stages HERBEHES Eﬁ?ﬁ ijez

during the year 2) 7 16 21
Movements due to changes in creditrisk ~ ZE R E E 5| & 22 - - 2
Write-offs Wﬁﬁ - - (3) €]
As at 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+=A=+—-H 41 8 74 123

In general, interest receivables are considered as default when —MRmE - ERFE ﬁHﬂEL%iH—i} Jicd
they are overdue by over 90 days. As at 31 December 2020, interest WHEWRBEN -R_ZT_FF+-A
receivables of HK$2,440,000 (2019: HK$1,132,000) was default under =+—H  EYFE24400008 T (=ZF

lifetime ECL and a provision of HK$88,000 (2019: HK$74,000) was — L 1 1,132,0008 L) REBITEHEE
provided. BB TEEL - WEFT1E88,0008L(ZF

— N 1 74,0008 7T ) H B o
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INTEREST RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

For loans that are not credit-impaired without significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition “Stage 1", ECL is measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime ECL that result from default
events possible within the next 12 months. If a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition is identified (“Stage 2") but not
yet deemed to be credit impaired, ECL is measured based on lifetime
ECL. In general, when loans receivable or its related installments are
overdue by 30 days, there are significant increase in credit risk. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, total provision of HK$4,000 (2019:
a release of HK$7,000) under Stage 1 and Stage 2 was charged to
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income based on
assessment from ECL model.

All the interest receivables as at the end of the reporting period,
based on the maturity date, are current.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

B ORISR M ()

19 EWFIE (&)

HRIEEERERBVRERAREER
SR ERIN([E—TREDMER - &
HEEEBRSERARNMEARATERE
MENEHSIBRNEHBHEEEENL
BIFTE - MEVHREREEHIEERR
BEEM(FEF_BEDETRREAEEE
BE - AEREEBEEE2BEREES
B2 - —MmME @ WEKRERREIEH
S HEIN A 30K - EEER ARG N -
BE-_S-_THE+-_A=+—RHItEE
BIETEREEBEBEANTGE  F—RKEB
T 58 — Pk BRSO ) MR S 54,0008 T (=&
— N #EB7,00087T) ERAHEE K
R PR o

RIBFHIA - RIS BRROME BKFE
HRBENER -

20 ERIE - HERHEMEKRRIE

As at 31 December
W+=B=+—8

Prepayments SEUNE €
Deposits i

Tax reserve certificate @R H

Other receivables H e I R0R

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEfTFRIE ~ 4 K H {th & U 208

Less: non-current portion A ERBIEL Y

Current portion mEnE

The Group’s deposits and other receivables are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

All deposits and other receivables are neither past due nor impaired.

2020 2019
—EZH —T-hNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THBTT

777 1,081

2,026 1,812
4,497 3,187

15 15

7,315 6,095
- (1,480)

7,315 4,615

RE B EIE & R H Al WK IR LB TT AT
’fﬁ o

P A 42 & e EL A MR TR 25 BE 48 16 H 7 4
IE o

137



Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI IR RMEE ()

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 21 RERRESE/EYNSEAER
DEPOSIT
(a) Cash at bank and on hand () |RITRFERSE
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
T THT
Cash at bank and on hand RITAFHERE 132,835 30,201
The carrying amounts of the Group's cash at bank and on hand AEBRTRFERSVEEEBEZMN
are denominated in the following currencies: TE®BE :
2020 2019
—ECEHF —ThE
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET T
Hong Kong dollars BT 132,808 30,172
Renminbi AR 27 29
132,835 30,201
(b) Pledged deposit (b) EEAER
2020 2019
—B-EF —ZT-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Pledged deposit held at bank B RIRITIF 7,434 1,713
As at 31 December 2020, HK$7,434,000 (31 December 2019: RZIEZEF+_A=+—H o2&
HK$1,713,000) pledged deposit held at a bank was used to IR 1T IE 7,434,000 L (ZFE— 1,
secure a bank loan facility (Note 24(a)). The Group's pledged F+—A=+—8 :1,713,0008T)H
deposit is denominated in Hong Kong dollars. ERITE R E 2 R (HI5E24()) ©

REE D EAFRABTTAHE -
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22 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS

All deferred income tax assets of the Group are expected to be
recovered after more than 12 months.

The movement in deferred income tax assets during the year, without
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same
tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—-A—-A

Credited to the consolidated statement of REFEEWRRA
comprehensive income

At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+=A=+—H

At 1 January 2020 RZZ-TF—-H—H

Credited/(charged) to the consolidated statement AR HHRAY
of comprehensive income

At 31 December 2020 RZE-Z2F+-A=+—H

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary
differences to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of HK$237,000 (2019: HK$265,000) in respect of
losses amounting to HK$1,435,000 (2019: HKS$1,606,000) that can be
carried forward indefinitely against future taxable income.

B ORISR M ()

22 EENBHEE

BHARBERARTENSHEERNER
T EA R -

EENSHREENFRNER (LR R
Al — B i Rl ARE R AR AS AR SR an T

Provisions
Accelerated  for collective
tax impairment of

RN/ ()

depreciation loans receivable Total
ERER
MEHEFE HAEBERSE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FH7T
168 414 582
48 231 279
216 645 861
216 645 861
30 (215) (185)
246 430 676

%8 Rl 8388 AR FEsR B i M| IR B BT
TREE - PR R B 2 SRR T A
BHREE -

RZEZZEF+-_A=1+—8 ~5H
I 48 A] 4 PR OHA AL 48 A0 AT 4R 8 R SR B R
iUk A B B8 1,4350008 T (—ZZF— A
F 11,606,000 7T ) EREEFEHEE
237,000/ 7L (ZF — 15 © 265,000/ 7T) °
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23 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 EritERARAEMENRKIE

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2020 2019
—E-EF —E—NF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
T THT
Accruals JEETEBH 2,485 4016
Other payables HAh e3R8 792 1315
Total @t 3,277 5,331

Accruals and other payables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. FEET B A M At FIELOE TEHE -
24 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24 RITRHEAMER
Bank and other borrowings are analysed as follows: RITREMBERAITWOT -
As at 31 December
Rt+t=—BA=+—8H

2020 2019
—ECEH —T—NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Bank loans — secured (Note (a)) RITER— B (FIEE @) 48,700 20,000
Other borrowings — secured (Note (b)) HAvfEk— BER P (b)) - 156,891
Total bank and other borrowings RIT R A MG R AREE 48,700 176,891
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24 BANKAND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Bank loans - secured

As at 31 December 2020, the secured bank loans of
HK$48,700,000 (2019: HK$20,000,000), were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, repayable in one year and bore interest
rate of 4.36% (2019: 6.71%) per annum. The bank loans were
obtained from an independent third party bank and were
secured by (i) a floating charge on certain loans receivable
of a subsidiary of the Company with carrying value of
HK$115,699,000 (2019: HK$140,187,000); (ii) a floating charge
on certain bank accounts of a subsidiary of the Company with
carrying value of HK$7,434,000 (2019: HK$1,713,000); and (iii) a
corporate guarantee from the Company.

Other borrowings - secured

As at 31 December 2020, other borrowings were fully repaid.
The Group did not have amounts drawn down under the loan
facility which remained outstanding as at 31 December 2020.
As at 31 December 2019, other borrowings of HK$156,891,000,
which were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, repayable in
one year and bore interest rates ranging from 5.75% to 6.5% per
annum.

Such other borrowings were obtained from independent third
party licensed money lenders and were secured by the pledge
of certain properties mortgaged to a subsidiary of the Company
for loans granted to its respective customers and a corporate
guarantee from the Company. The fair value of these properties
was HK$238,880,000 (2019: HK$418,200,000) as at 31 December
2020.

B ORISR M ()

24 RITRHEMERK(E)

(a)

(b)

RITER—FEH
R-ZE-ZTF+-_/F=+—H A&
HERTT B 748,700,000 L ( —E— 1L
120,000,000 7T ) UB TTEHE ~ 7B
R—FREEREFHELI36%(ZF
—NEF 1 671% )T E - ZBITERK
ThA B = FIRITEVS » WIATF
HEEER (VA RA—FHE AR
BRI E 51156990008 T (—E— A1
F :140,187,00078 ) HE T RKE K
FEER  (VARF—HENB AR K
H1{E 57,434,000 T (=& — L& ¢
1,713,000 7L ) M & TRITERP 28
RS ¢ M (i) AR RIH QA EIER o

HitER —BEH
RN-ZE-ZTF+_A=+—8 "  Hit
EREBHEEE R T -_TF+—
A=+—8  AEETESHHE iR
B EZRE N hE+_-A
=+—H  AEMER156891,000% T
LABTTEHE - R—FREE  #NT
5.75%Z26.5%MFFIEFT B o

ZEHMEFREBULE = FIFEK
BEA BARRRASELPREER
MEWFARNR—FEMHBEARNET
PERAND TR R BERERRE - R
TECEFEF+_A=+—8 %EY
%A F1{E A238,880,0008 T ( — =
— L4 1 418,200,00058 7T ) °

141



Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ORI IR RMEE ()

25 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@) Cash generated from operations

Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Loan interest income (Note 6)

Bank interest income (Note 6)

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment (Note 7)

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
(Note 7)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Interest expenses

Reversal of impairment losses/
(impairment losses) — net (Note 8)

Changes in working capital:

Loans receivable

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Accruals and other payables

Cash generated from operations

25 BEREEH

(a) RERBMELERSE

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-H=1+—HLEE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
bR RSB A0 8 76,590 74,719
MTHSIBEEHFAE
B B (M sE6) (103,277) (121,737)
RITHBURA (M 5E6) (36) (80)
ME -« BEMERETE
GEX) 424 582
FRAEEEE (ME7)
4,026 2,664
HEWE  BEL&ENER
- 28
BRI 5,092 15,035
BEREEE, CRERBRE)
—F5E(Mi5Es) (1,523) 1,425
EEELEE)
FEWE K 203,386 43,506
BNRIE B Rk
o Y 5RIE (1,220) 2,407
FERTE B & E b B FIE (2,054) 859
KEEREFIRS 181,408 19,408
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25 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 25 BEREER(HE)

(b) BEEBIELERBENHR

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

Asat 1 January 2019

Changes from financing cash flows:
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings

Repayment of bank and other borrowings
Proceeds from loan from a related party

Repayment of loan from a related party

Dividend paid
Lease payment

Total change from financing cash flows
Other changes:
Dividend declared

Addition to lease liabilities
Interest on lease liabilities

Total other changes

As at 31 December 2019

Asat 1 January 2020

Changes from financing cash flows:
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings

Repayment of bank and other borrowings

Dividend paid
Lease payment

Total change from financing cash flows
Other changes:

Dividend declared
Interest on lease liabilities

Total other changes

As at 31 December 2020

RZZE-NF-A-H

HERSREEY

BIORAMER
Frig3a

BEFFRANEDR

—AERRFER
Frig3a

[Bg—F @Mﬁ?gm
H&E

HENH

RARDRERDER

2459
AL
SNEEAN
BERREHE

N

RZF-nE+ZA
E+ A

RZE-55-A-H

BERERER
ﬁﬂ&ﬁm1m
FE3E
BERAREMESR
BRKE
HEMT

RERLRERDEE
229

SBEVT:
HEREHNE

Bank and Loan from Total liabilities

other arelated Dividend Lease from financing

borrowings company payable liabilities activities

BT REEY

EfbfEs EfRE HESE BRAR

HKS'000 Hh$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TiEn j TR j

296,904 50,000 - - 346904

143,030 - - - 143,030

(263,043) - - - (263,043)

- 50,000 - - 50,000

- (100,000) - - (100,000)

- - (21,600) - (21,600)

- - - (2832) (2832)

(120013) (50,000) (21,600) (2832) (194445)

- - 21,600 - 21,600

- - - 8,052 8,052

- - - 283 283

- - 21,600 8335 29935

176,891 - - 5503 182,394

176,891 - - 5,503 182,394

48,700 - - - 48,700

(176,891) - - - (176,891)

- - (9,200 - (9,200

- - - (4,281) (4,281)

(128,191) - (9,200) (4,281) (141,672)

- - 9,200 - 9,200

- - - 215 215

- - 9,200 215 9,415

48,700 - = 1437 50,137
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26 SHARE CAPITAL 26 B
Authorised share capital EERAK
Nominal Equivalent
Number of value of nominal
ordinary ordinary value of
shares shares ordinary shares
EEREA EEREE SEREEAEE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 and RZZE-NE+-A=1+—H"
31 December 2020 ZTEF-A-Bk
ZZCZET-A=1-H 10,000,000,000 0.01 100,000,000
L
Issued share capital CRTRAE
Number of
issued shares Amount
ERTRAEE &8
HK$
BT
At 31 December 2019, 1 January 2020 and RZZ-NEFE+-A=+—H"
31 December 2020 ZZEF-A-BK
“E-EFEtZA=1—H 400,000,000 4,000,000
27 RESERVES 27 f#B
The amount of the Group's reserve and the movements therein TEERAFERBEFENRESER
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated BHHNUBEHRERBISENEHERED
statement of changes in equity on page 75 of the financial o
statements.
The Group capital reserve represents the excess of the fair value of REE 2 ERFBHEERBEARARD LW
the net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant AIEAARRBEZMBAREEFER
to the reorganisation prior to the Listing of the Company’s share, FEBBARARDETEARBR KRG 2
over the nominal value of the Company’s share issued in exchange [EIRERC
thereof.
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28 BHAERS
The Group is controlled by Blossom Spring (incorporated in BVI), A& B HBlossom Spring( R R BR LS
which is the ultimate holding company of the Group and owns 75% A ) #EH 0 Blossom Spring & AN &
of the Company's shares. The remaining 25% of the shares are widely EHREERAR - WHEAARRF75%8 1%
held. The ultimate controlling party is Ms. Jin Xiaogin (“Ms. Jin"). o Eep2sulRMRIRZ T HE - &KE

HhReEELL((2rL])-

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in BAAHTBERREMIADIEZENRS
this consolidated financial statement, the following is a summary of SR ON - T Ol AN £ (B B H B Bt
the significant transactions carried out between the Group and its REBEE-_ZT-_TFR-_FT—NAF+_A
related parties in the ordinary course of business during the years —t+—HBIEFEEHEEKBREPETH
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. BEARG -
(a) Interest expenses on loans from a related company (a) BB LATRIERFEREX
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT THT
Interest expenses on loans from a AR A ERF BRI —
related company — Evercrest Wealth TEE = B IRBR A F]
Management Limited ("EWML") (TEwmL]) - 757
On 6 July 2018, EWML, a related company of the Group where N-ZE—-NFLANB  KEEB@BE A
Ms. Jin is the sole ultimate beneficial owner, provided the Group FIEWMLA AN E BIR A EEKRERE TG
with an unsecured revolving loan facility with a credit limit B MeaZtTAWMLHIE —HEERE
of HK$50,000,000. The loan was denominated in Hong Kong B A BEZE A50,0000008 7T o B
dollars, repayable in one year and bore fixed interest rate of 6.5% TyE TR E AR —FEREE TR
per annum. The loan facility was expired on 5 July 2019 and the 65%ETFTEFEEE « ZIBEARFER—
loan has been fully repaid in 2019. E—-hE+HARADRE  MABABERD

RZTF-NFERTHEE -
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28 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 28 BB S R H (&)
(b) Key management compensation (b) TEEIE A S HEHN
The remuneration of executive Directors of the Company and RARMITESELHEMETEEEAS
other members of key management is shown below: ZENITRTR
Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=+—-HLEE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FHT
Salaries, benefits and other remuneration ¥4 - @85 R EALEN S 4,049 3,970
Discretionary bonus EIIBIEAL 268 530
Pension costs RIR G B AR 20 90
4,407 4,590
(c) Remuneration paid to a related party () X1FFRAE S = F M
Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=1t—HLFE
2020 2019
—B-EF —ZE-hF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHEIT

Salaries and pension costs paid to the M—BARABES BB
spouse of a director of the Company ISz & RRIKR& A 252 252
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29 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

29 ARTAFBRARRFEHEE B

ZNNEIEU Y2 O

Statement of Financial Position of the Company

Ms. Wang YaoF 3£ 2+

Director& &

Ms. Yip Lee Ying EF B Z +
Director& %

As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2020 2019
—EZH —EF-NF
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
ihg=a F#&T FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RSB RRIMIEE 444,795 444,795
Amount due from subsidiaries A NGB 129,472 132,031
Total non-current assets FRBEEHLE 574,267 576,826
Current assets REEE
Prepayment and other receivables A FRIE R B At FE MR IE 4,646 3,332
Cash and cash equivalents BENBSEEY 145 154
Total current asset REBEEHAE 4,791 3,486
Total assets EEH#E 579,058 580,312
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of A FHEA AEILHEZE
the Company
Share capital B 4,000 4,000
Other reserves E At (@) 566,591 566,591
Retained earnings 1R & T (a) 3,937 5,193
Total equity R 574,528 575,784
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REEE
Tax payable FERRLIIR 4,522 4,522
Accruals EETE A 8 6
Total current liabilities REBEEHAE 4,530 4,528
Total liabilities =Lt ot o] 4,530 4,528
Total equity and liabilities EEREBESE 579,058 580,312
The statement of financial position of the Company was approved by ARRIMBRRAKEESER T — —
the Board of Directors on 30 March 2021 and was signed on its behalf. —A=TH#AERBEYHATALTRAESE
2.
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29 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 29 A TR AERREESE ()
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Statement of Financial Position of the Company (Continued) RRT R BARR R (E)
Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company Mite ARFREES
Share Capital Retained
premium reserve earnings Total
R ME EXfGE REEF &%
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
THT THT THT THT
Balance at 1 January 2019 RIE-hE-A-Az&t 122,176 444,415 6,563 573,154
Total comprehensive income FRGEARALE
for the year - - 20,230 20,230
Transactions with owners BREEANRS
Dividend paid relating to 2018 BB \EEBHKE - - (12,000) (12,000)
Dividend paid relating to 2019 BHE-_Z-NFENRE - - (9,600) (9,600)
Total transactions with owners, HEBANRZHEE
recognised directly in equity (EEREGZRR) - - (21,600) (21,600)
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-Z-h&
TZR=t—-Bz&&H 122,176 444415 5,193 571,784
Representing 1EATIRE
Reserves & 122,176 435,215 5,193 562,584
Proposed final dividend EEAERS - 9,200 - 9,200
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZE-hE
TZRA=t+-HBz&tH 122,176 444415 5,193 571,784
Balance at 1 January 2020 R-E-EF-F-Az&H 122,176 444,415 5,193 571,784
Total comprehensive income FRGEMALE
for the year - - 7,944 7,944
Transactions with owners BETANR S
Dividend paid relating to 2019 BEE_Z-NFEARE - - (9,200) (9,200)
Total transactions with owners, HEEANRZAHE
recognised directly in equity (EERERER) - - (9,200) (9,200)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-Z-Zf
+TZA=t—-H2&t 122,176 444,415 3,937 570,528
Representing EATIEE
Reserves i 122,176 406,015 3,937 532,128
Proposed final dividend BEAHRE - 25,600 - 25,600
Proposed special dividend BEERIRE - 12,800 - 12,800
Balance at 31 December 2020 R-ZB-Zf
TZRA=t+-Bz&tH 122,176 444,415 3,937 570,528
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29 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 29 AATBMBMRAERRFHESH (&)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Statement of Financial Position of the Company (Continued) ARAT BB E(F)

Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company (Continued) MizE@) AARFEEZE(E)
The Company's capital reserve represents the excess of the fair value of the HBHEEENARRERREERERARAR
net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to the 7 ETAT - RABIRIEEAWENE QT
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company's share, over the nominal BEFENAFERDL AR R AR R
value of the Company’s share issued in exchange therefor. BARMEITRDEE 2 858 -
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, a company may make RIBEFAEBEENRE  ARARETFERT
distributions to its shareholders out of the capital reserves in certain BEAREBERERRIEL DR

circumstances.

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EERAMREAE
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EEREARH HEN
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive of RARIBREZREIOMEHT A0
the Company is set out below: ™~
For the year ended 31 December 2020: BE—F-_FF+-_F=1+—H
IFEE

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking
ERESARARNANRLARBRUBARBHENAELHE

Discretionary  Pension Other

Fees Salary  bonuses costs  benefits Total
ne B¢ RERL BAEAE  HiEA #it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Thn Tén Tin Thén Tén

Executive Directors HiTEs
Ms. Wang Yao THLT 600 - - 18 - 618
Ms. Jin Yiaogin $RERT 600 - - 18 - 618
Mr. Ng Yiu Lun (i) il bt - 640 - 12 - 652
Ms. Yip Lee Ying (i) ENRLL) - 449 168 6 - 623
1,200 1,089 168 54 - 2,51
Independent non-executive Directors BUynES
Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick SRS 240 - - - - 240
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXEL 20 - - - - 20
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis BEREE 240 - - - - 240
720 - - - - 720
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B ORI IR RMEE ()

30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 30 EEEMNEN = (HE)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EEREBNFM(E)
(Continued)
Note: Bt E
(i) Mr.Ng Yiu Lun resigned as an executive director with effect from 28 August () (ThRREECHTIRTES B=FT=F
2020. Salaries and pension costs of approximately HK$326,000 paid to him FNAZ+TNNBRER - TJE,HEEAf 2
in relation to his employment with the Group from 28 August 2020 to 31 TFENAZFTNREZZ-_ZTF+=A
December 2020 had not been included in the above table. =t BEERAEEMRESZ AN
R AR & B AN #9326,00058 7T M AR ET A £
=
(i) Ms. Yip Lee Ying has been appointed as an executive director with (il EFNBRZIBEZTARITES B_F
effect from 28 August 2020. Salaries and pension costs of approximately —ZEFENA=+NH tixﬁl cREHNZE
HK$910,000 paid to her in relation to her employment with the Group from —EF—-A—-BEZZETFNA=t+L
1 January 2020 to 27 August 2020 had not been included in the above AXEARTEEMRAEZ RS KRR
table. BRARKI910,000/8 TT i AR AT A £ ©
During the year, no director has waived any emoluments (2019: FR - BEEFHRETAN(ZF
Nil). —hEF &)
For the year ended 31 December 2019: QE— E—NEFE+ZHA=+—H

Emoluments paid or receiv ect of a person’s services as a director
ther of th y orits undertaking

Discretionary
bonuses

HKS'000
ThT
Executive Directors HhES
Ms. Wang Yao THLT 600 - - 18 - 618
Ms. Jin Yiaogin SBRENT 600 - - 18 - 618
Wr.Ng YiuLun 2t - 600 100 18 - 718
1,200 600 100 54 - 1954
Independent non-executive Directors BUFYES
Mr. Man Yiu Kwong, Nick B4 3t 0 - - - - 40
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXET pl - - - - 40
Mr. Tang, Warren Louis Bkt 240 - - - _ 240
720 - - - - 720
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30 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits or termination benefits during the year (2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no consideration was
provided to or receivable by third parties for making available
director’s services (2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected
entities with such directors subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year (2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 28, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's business
to which the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
(2079: Nil).

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

B ORISR M ()

30 EEEMNRE A= (&)

ERRKERBER

I 8 5 B0 AN JE U 3 & W ER
EARARENMBEREN(ZF -
FE) e

REZRBEEE=FRENNK
B

HE_Z-_ZF+_-_A=+—HL
FE VEAEEREANE=HIR
HRE B NERERE(ZE
—h )

BRUES - SEFEAER
REZESEERBECERS
ZHANER EERREAM
BB AR F E RSN F A B
NEE  ZEHEAERIZEES
EREZERDITANER - £E
AEEMR B (ZF—NF &) -

EERRG RHHEHNZE
RiER

BRPRE28PT BRSNS - BIEARFE R
REREAERE  ARTLEFTIE
MEREEEXEEEEARRESH
BEEA#Z (BRERIMEE)NE
AR5 ZHRAH(ZT-N%F:
&) -

151



Global International Credit Group Limited Annual Report 2020

Five Year Financial Summary

HFEHE

RESULTS

Revenue I ON

Profit and total comprehensive B AEIGEHEEHEF &
income for the year attributable 43 & UL A 4858
to owners

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets BEBE
Total liabilities aEBE
Total equity R

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—ECEE —T-NF —T-N\F —T—+tF —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET FET FHET FHET
103,277 121,737 124,277 103,479 130,295
64,165 62,500 68413 63,006 76,543
EEREE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“ECEE —TNF —T-N\F —T—+F —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET FET FHET FET
898,924 995,177 1,105,430 799,045 1,291,745
57,583 208,301 359,954 100,730 629,236
841,341 786,376 745476 698,315 662,509
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